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Corporate Profile
DEEN

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The shares of
the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on |7 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We operate through our subsidiaries MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd.
(“"MOBI Shenzhen™), MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji An) Co,, Ltd. (“MOBI
Jian"), MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co., Ltd. ("MOBI Xian"), MOBI Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited (“MOBI HK"), MOBI Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd, Shenzhen MOBI
Industry Development Co, Ltd, Xian Shengrong Communication Technology Co., Ltd.
and Shenzhen Shengyuzhihui Network Technology Co.,, Ltd.

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and base
station Radio Frequency (“RF") subsystems in China. Our business consists of the design,
manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem and solutions
that are the required components of mobile communication coverage systems, including,
wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA), 3G (TD-SCDMA,
CDMA 2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), 4G (TD-LTE and FDD-LTE), 5G, MIMO Antenna,
satellite communication and microwave transmission networks. We sell our products to
network operators in China and overseas directly for deployment into the networks they
are constructing and operating. We also sell our products to some of the world's leading
wireless network solution providers who incorporate our products into their wireless
coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they then sell to network

operators worldwide.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long term

relationships with our customers.
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Corporate Information
NEER

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY'I-1 104, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,

Guangdong Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1902, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Liao Dong

Chen Zhaojun

Non-executive Directors
Qu Degian

Independent non-executive Directors
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Li Guinian

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lau Wing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Hu Xiang
Lau Wing

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Zhang Han (Chairman)
Li Tianshu

Li Guinian

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

AMRER
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

HEARRETEEFE iyt
REERE R TE LR R R 3 75

BERTEEE
EBEFETITEBHAREEATLI902E

EER
HITES
GRIESD)
EX
BKE

FHUTES
JETER

BYFHTES
FRE

G

FRF

DAWE

212

RERR
ik

£

BREEE
FR(EE)
FREF
FRF



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Li Tianshu (Chairman)

Zhang Han

Li Guinian

Qu Degian

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Hu Xiang (Chairman)

Li Tianshu

Zhang Han

Li Guinian

Qu Degian

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
China Merchants Bank
|/F, Wenhua Building, Shennan Road East, Shenzhen, China

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTOR RELATIONS
Telephone: 86-755-27150701 (ext 390)
Wu Qian and Chen Zhaotong

Email: if@mobi-antenna.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 947
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Financial Highlights
BB E

Analysis of revenue by business type Analysis of revenue by customer type

BEBDEHBRADHT BREF D ERNWADHT

(In RMB million) (In RMB million)
(AR¥ERT) (AR#E®T)

836- 141
658. 90

~
= o
<
L ==
o~ A = =2
2 3
B wn
o~
L]
[ 2 m
N bt 5 ~
< L 1
n
g ~
~
-}
0
(=}
n
©
o~
[ae)
-

13 14 () 16 17 13 14 15 16 17

B Antenna %4 I Network operators in the PRC and India  #11 & | 4B B4 T
Base station RF subsystem ZIf&H4EF R4t I Network solution providers and other customers 48477 S HLAER & H b 5
I Coverage extension solution EEIEfFAE

Profit attributable to shareholders

IR SR BB 5

(In RMB million)
(AR¥EET)

13 14 15 16 17

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Financial Highlights
PBEE

KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES FEMBEE
(All amounts are expressed in RMB' million unless otherwise stated) (BEBEHBIN IEEBEAUNARBEE
TTZ5)
2017 2016
2017 F 20165
Revenue A 1,422.4 1,459.7
Gross profit EH 246.1 3535
(Loss) profit before taxation HiA0(E18) F 8 (61.0) 720
Net (loss) profit attributable to shareholders IRER MG F (B 18 ) M (48.5) 65.8
Total assets BEE 2,348.0 21910
Net current assets MBNEEFE 649.3 843.0
Net assets attributable to shareholders W R e & B 5 1,177.2 [,249.4
Inventories turnover days FEREXH 17 16
AR turnover days FEW AR TUBEE R & 228 225
AP turnover days FERTRR BB RS 195 192
Current ratio BN 1.56 198
Gearing = V=R 12.2% 11.7%
No. of issued shares, million shares eI A (BER) 820.7 8189
Net assets value per share, RMB BREEFEARET) 1.43 1.53
Basic (loss) earnings per share, RMB cents BRER(EER)BN(ARES) (5.92) 8.04
Retum on average equity TR AR R -4.00% 5.36%
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of MOBI Development Co., Ltd, | am pleased to
present to the shareholders the business development of the Group and its subsidiaries

(the “Group") for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year").

In the immediate past year of 2017, global political and economic turbulence as well as
present domestic transition of 4G and 5G industry development challenged the Group's
business development. However, it is pleased to note that, through product and technical
innovation and continuous market expansion, the Group maintained a leading market
share in the industry and stood out from most of its competitors in terms of 5G wireless

communication technology.

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2017, the Group realized approximately RMB1,422.44 million of operating revenue,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 2.6%, while net loss amounted to
approximately RMB48.51 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 173.7%; basic

loss per share was approximately RMBO0.06.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

There are cyclical fluctuations in the network construction and equipment investment of
China's domestic mobile communications. The last complete cycle covered the period
form the issuance of the 3G license in January 2009 to the issuance of the 4G license in
December 2013, and the current cycle is expected to lay in the period from the issuance
of 4G license to commercial use of 5G in the future. Each cycle change means upgrading
of technology, switching of market focuses and major adjustment of customer structure.

As such, it is also the reshuffle process of every market competition.

In 2017, the market situation also underwent major changes. Firstly, after the start of TD-
LTE Phase 5 network building, the total amount of demand reduced significantly followed
by sharply dropped price, which resulted in a substantial reduction of approximately
RMB296.09 million (or 86.3%) in the Group's TD/TD-LTE antenna sales, being equivalent
to approximately 20% of sales revenue in 2016. Secondly, hot-spot opportunities for
domestic low-band refarming and loT antennas mainly concentrated on the refarming of
800-900M band and most of its direct sales were to China Telecom and China Mobile.
We successfully took the advantage of this adjustment so that our sales revenue in low-
band refarming and loT accounted for approximately 31% of the Group's total revenue.
Thirdly, golden opportunity window was open for us in the intemational market. Despite
the increasingly fierce interational competition and the booming demand for high quality
product with an attractive pricing level, our products were recognized by customers in
Europe, while it remained difficult for overseas counterparts to reduce costs. That's to
say, it's European customers who opened the door to opportunities for us. In 2017, the
scale of our intemational direct sales business increased by almost 60% compared with
the same period of last year, and the revenue from sales to Nokia increased by more than
42.2%. In addition, we were brought into Ericsson's short list of suppliers and obtained
antenna supply contracts with some European operators for major supply and even the

exclusive supply in the entire network.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Certainly, these adjustments also led to phased cost mainly including the substantial
increase in research and development investment and the decline in gross profit
margin caused by fierce domestic competition, which altogether resulted in a decrease
in profitability in 2017. But we believe these declines are phased. On the one hand,
research and development investment is an investment that can bring returns which will
continue to be reflected in the business growth in the coming years. On the other hand,
the appropriate adjustment of product structure and customer structure has laid the

foundation for the recovery and growth of future profitability.

To sum up the above analysis, the Group is one of the world's few RF technology
providers with leading-edge technologies in both TD-LTE and FDD-LTE and is also one
of the few providers that can provide the multi-frequency and multi-system antenna
technology. The Group believes that the Group is a leader of 4G and 5G antenna and RF

subsystem product technologies.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

In 2017, the Board of Directors of the Company recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group believes that the popularity of smart terminals has driven the

application of mobile internet into a rapid development pace.

The Work Report of the Central Government in 2017 suggested “to fully implement
the plan for developing strategic emerging industries, accelerate the development of new
materials, artificial intelligence, integrated circuits, bio pharmaceuticals, fifth generation
mobile communications technology research and development and transformation, and
develop industrial clusters in these fields”. It is expected that 5G standard-setting and trial
commercial operation will be completed between 2018 and 2020, and will be officially
on use since 2020. Certain upgrading opportunities will be provided by 5G, including
the demand for the construction of new base station and reconstruction of the roof of
existing base station. Due to the non-independent networking standard of 5G at the
current stage which requires to share the core network with 4G, the roof of base station
will be overlapped on a large scale, bringing a huge demand for reconstruction, which
means that the existing antennas such as GSM, TD-LTE and NB-loT will be replaced by
multi-frequency and multi-system antennas with high technical sophistication. With the
Group's leading position in customer channels and 5G technology, the Group is in place

to capture early opportunities riding on the development waves of 5G.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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In the global arena, the overseas 4G cycle will last much longer than that in China.
Although 5G is coming soon, 4G technology will still be the mainstream in the global
network construction for a long time in the future. With its leading product technology
of overseas multi-frequency system, the Group achieved satisfying breakthroughs in
European operators in 2017 particularly its significant improvement in various aspects such
as product technology, quality standards and technical process experiences. In the future,
the Group will further develop the markets of overseas network operators, continuously
enter the short lists of multinational and major regional network operators and continue
to increase the Group's share in the global market on a long-term basis. It is foreseeable
that the global market share of the Group is still extremely small at present, as such,
the continuous expansion in the global market will not only push the way up in periodic

development for the next few years, but also achieve sustained growth in a longer period.

Meanwhile, the Group will also actively explore the development of new businesses,
including exclusive network coverage for governmental enterprises and the application
of wireless solutions, to expand new growth momentum for the business of the Group.
The Group believes that 5G development will bring huge opportunities for mobile
communication. Wireless will be widely applied no matter in man-to-man communication,
man-to-object communication or object-to-object communication. The Group will grasp

the opportunity to achieve a record high result in the next few years.

I'would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders and customers for their
kind support and trust, and to our Directors and staff for their diligent work. The Group
and the Board will continue to optimise the customer base and structure, adapt strategies
of product differentiation based on technology and costs to enhance the integrated
competitiveness and ensure the stable growth of the operating results of the Group.
The Group strives to become a top class global provider of radio frequency technology
for mobile communication in order to maximise the returns to its shareholders and the

society.

Hu Xiang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Shenzhen, the PRC
22 March 2018
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW ¥B KR RE
Revenue WA

When compared with last year, revenue decreased by approximately RMB37.26 million,or 2017 ERABREER L HARE3I 7268 T
approximately 2.6%, to approximately RMBI,422.44 million in 2017 (2016: approximately (#92.6%) M NEREE 1422441878 (2016 F -
RMBI,459.70 million). WAREE 145970187T) °

Sales of antenna system decreased by approximately 14.5% to approximately RMB754.79 ABRERGHHEBERLOI4%ETEHINAR
million (2016: approximately RMB882.65 million), while sales of base station RF B 7547918 70(2016F + ) AR # 8826518
subsystem increased by approximately 22.8% to approximately RMB592.81 million (2016: L) MEGRFAETZFNEEBEL NG
approximately RMB482.85 million). In addition, sales of products of coverage extension  22.8% Z #I AR 59281 BL(2016 % : KA
solution decreased by approximately 20.6% to approximately RMB74.84 million (2016 R#548285187T) o o BELBARE
approximately RMB94.2 | million). MAHE B KI206%ENARKET484 8
(20165 : HARK I ETT)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

There were periodic fluctuations in domestic mobile communication network building
and equipment investment. The last complete cycle was from January 2009, the time of
granting of 3G license, to December 2013, the time of granting of 4G license. The current
cycle is expected to be from the time of granting of 4G license to the commercial use of
5G in the future. Every periodic change means technological upgrade, switch of market
focuses and significant adjustment of client structure, thus a process for the restructuring

of market competition.

In 2017, there were also significant changes in market conditions. The first was that since
the entering of TD-LTE Phase 5 network building, the total demands had dropped sharply
with a significant decrease in the prices, which led to a large decline of approximately
RMB296.09 million (or approximately 86.3%, equivalent to approximately 20% of the
sales revenue in 2016) in the sales of the Group's TD/TD-LTE antennas. The second
was the hot spot of low-band refarming/loT in China, which was a refarming opportunity
centering on 800-900M band, and the major clients of direct sales were China Telecom
and China Mobile. We successfully seized such adjustment so that our sales from low-
band refarming/loT accounted for approximately 31% of the Group's total revenue. The
third was the golden opportunity in international market. With the increasingly intense
interational competition, the demands for products with high price-to-performance ratio
are growing rapidly, whereas the overseas peers have great difficulties in cost reduction,
and in the meantime, our products are well-received by European users. Therefore, many
European clients offered opportunities to us. In 2017, our business scale of intemational
direct sales increased almost 60% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year, and sales to Nokia grew over 42.2%. Moreover, we entered the supplier short lists
of Ericsson, and secured major supply contracts, or even the whole-network exclusive

antenna supply contracts, with some European operators.

The Group also believes that as the Group is a leader in the antenna and RF subsystem
product technology in the PRC and by leveraging its product technology and market
advantages, it is positioned to generate greater benefits from network building in the

future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWR DN

Antenna system

In 2017, the Group's antenna products continued to maintain a leading position in the
domestic market, and our continuously improving antenna product technologies and

reliability were recognized by more and more international clients.

Revenue from antenna products is greatly affected by periodic adjustment and switch
of focuses. In 2017, sales of the Group's TD/TD-LTE antennas decreased significantly by
approximately 86.3% to approximately RMB47.20 million as compared with last year. Sales
of low-band refarming/loT antennas increased significantly by approximately 3,528.7% to
approximately RMB235.94 million as compared with last year. Sales of Pre5G antennas
increased significantly by approximately 121.6% to approximately RMB12.25 million as
compared with last year. As promoted by both domestic technological upgrade and
increasing demands of overseas operators, sales of multi-frequency multi-system antennas
grew greatly by approximately 156.8% to approximately RMB202.84 million. Multi-
frequency multi-system antennas are expected to be a major growth driver for antennas

business in the coming period.

In addition, the Group continued to actively develop the overseas operator market in
2017 and won positive feedback from the customers. The Group's direct sales to overseas
operators are primarily antenna products, which also recorded substantial increase in
2017. The Group believe that the upgrades in 5G technology and overseas growth will be

the powerhouses for growth in antennas business of the Group in the years to come.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Base station RF subsystem

The competition of base station RF subsystem was more intense in 2017. The Group
continued to maintain a leading supplier position among leading global telecommunication
equipment manufacturers. The revenue from the Group's base station RF subsystem in
2017 increased by 22.8% to approximately RMB592.81 million and we maintained speedy
growth in the sales to the clients of ZTE Corporation and Nokia. Meanwhile, in 2017, the
Group was officially approved and certified by Ericsson and became a qualified supplier of

its global RF subsystem.

In the first half of 2017, competition was particularly intense in the prices of RF subsystem
products, thus the price and gross profit of the Group's RF subsystem business were
affected in the second quarter of 2017. However, with the emergence of the Group's
cost competitiveness and product structural adjustment since the second half year, our
gross profit began to recover gradually, and sales revenue sped up growing, with more
excellent quality performance than some competitors. The Group believes that, after the
market baptism in 2017, our product competitiveness is better recognized by the clients,
with further enhanced market share. In particular, the Group's securing of more overseas

projects will bring about more opportunities for the Group's growth in 2018.

Coverage extension solution

In 2017, revenue from the Group's coverage extension solutions decreased by
approximately 20.6% to approximately RMB/4.84 million, mainly due to an decrease of
approximately 75.8% in its revenue from other constructions to approximately RMB4.02
million. The aesthetic antenna is actually one of the achievements in business in 2017. The
Group has secured major shares in China Mobile and China Telecom's national bidding
exercise for aesthetic antennas. However, as it has not reached the large-scale delivery
stage, the revenue is yet to be recognised. We believe that very encouraging performance

will be recorded in 2018.
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Customers

In 2017, the Group noted that a change in market pattern resulted in a change in customer
revenue structure, and the Group's in-depth cooperation with telecommunication
equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators allowed the Group to enjoy
distinctive competitive strengths in changing market opportunities. In addition, the Group
proactively made adjustment and took the initiative in the industry cycle and hotspot

switching in 2017, and successfully realized the optimization of its revenue structure.

As affected by the subdivision of TD-LTE Phase 5 procurement and decline of demands
in 2017, the Group's sales to the PRC equipment manufacturer customers decreased by
approximately 21.9% to approximately RMB662.71 million, and its proportion in sales
revenue also dropped by approximately 9 percentage points to approximately 46.6%,
while the proportion in total revenue was approximately 46.6%. In addition, the Group's

sales to other major client groups also recorded growths.
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In particular, sales to PRC operators increased by approximately 7.2% to approximately
RMB369.97 million, and its proportion in total revenue increased by approximately 2
percentage points to approximately 26.0%. Moreover, the sales to PRC operators was still
dominated by China Unicom clients in last year, but in this year, sales to China Telecom
grew significantly by approximately 224.5%. In 2017, the Company's leading share in China
Mobile NB-loT antenna collective procurement bidding and aesthetic antenna bidding
successfully realized the optimization of client structure, and laid a foundation for the

continuing growth in 2018.

In addition, the Group's sales to international equipment manufactures in 2017 increased
by approximately 38.7% to approximately RMB250.91 million, and its proportion in total
revenue increased by approximately 5 percentage points to approximately |7.6%. Apart
from the increase in sales, the Group's quality performance was also recognized by clients,
thus secured many overseas projects with a more reasonable project structure, which

could contribute to the sales and profit growth in 2018.

In 2017, the Group's direct sales to international operators and other international
customers increased significantly by approximately 67.8% to approximately RMBI12.25
million, and its proportion in total revenue increased by approximately 3 percentage
points to approximately 7.9%. The Group believes that there is golden opportunity
in international market. With the increasingly intense international competition, the
demands for products with high price-to-performance ratio are growing rapidly, whereas
the overseas peers have great difficulties in cost reduction, and in the meantime, our
products are well-received by European users. Therefore, many European clients offered
opportunities to us. In 2017, apart from the significant year-on-year increase in the
business scale of international direct sales, we also secured major supply contracts, or even

the whole-network exclusive antenna supply contracts, with some European operators.

The deployment of the Group's products in the network systems of our diversified

international customers strengthened worldwide awareness of the brand name of MOBI.
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Gross profit

In 2017, gross profit of the Group declined by approximately 30.4% to approximately
RMB246.09 million (2016: approximately RMB353.47 million), and gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 24.2% in 2016 to approximately 17.3% in this year,
which includes the effect of provision for inventory depreciation. If excluding the effect
of provision for depreciation, the gross profit would decrease approximately [4.8% to
approximately RMB301.32 million. The gross margin is approximately 21.2%. The Group
will improve the overall gross profit margin through continuous upgrading of product mix

and effective control of internal costs.

The dropped gross profit margin is the price paid in such stages for business adjustment
and fierce competition in 2017. With the structure adjustment of product and customer in
place for 2017, the Group was full of confidence both in the future recovery and growth

of profit margins.
Other income and expenses

Other income and expenses increased to approximately RMB32.37million, which was

mainly attributable to the increase in compensation income of the Group.
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Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased by approximately |.4% from approximately
RMB92.99 million in 2016 to approximately RMB9I .71 million in 2017, primarily due
to the decrease in business expenditures and transportation costs resulted from the

strengthened cost management and the reduced business activities.
Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately |1.4% from approximately
RMBI 13.19 million in 2016 to approximately RMB126.04 million in 2017, mainly due to
the increases in expenses on wages, depreciation charges, exchange loss, rents and social

insurance.
Research and development costs

During the year, the Group recognized development costs of approximately RMB18.25
million as intangible assets. After the capitalization, development costs increased by
approximately 19.0% from approximately RMB89.68 million in 2016 to approximately
RMB106.75 million in 2017, which was mainly attributable to the increase in salaries
for research and development activities, surcharge on wages, travelling expenses, social
security contributions, testing fees and depreciation charges. Due to the significantly rise
in the demand for development in 5G technologies and overseas projects, the Group's
investment in research and development was in rapid growth for 2017, which is expected

to provide business opportunities in the future.
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Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately |1.2% from approximately RMBI3.10 million in
2016 to approximately RMB14.57 million in 2017. In 2017, bank borrowings of the Group
increased by approximately RMB31.20 million to approximately RMB287.46 million.

Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation significantly decreased by approximately 184.7% to a loss
before taxation of approximately RMB60.98 million (2016: a profit before taxation of
approximately RMB71.96 million). Net profit margin before taxation charges decreased

from approximately 4.9% in 2016 to approximately -4.3% in 2017.

The decrease in profit before tax for the year was mainly attributable to the impact of
the periodic adjustment, the decline in gross profit margin, the increase in research and
development costs and the increased provision for asset impairment. In respect of sales
to domestic operators, the Group adopted the business model of “purchase on credit
first and recognize sales revenue when contract receives after” which is also a business
practice for domestic operators to purchase communications equipment and components.
The Group has some stocks of products dispatched to domestic operators for the past, of
which are mainly 2G antenna spare parts. In view of the upcoming 5G, the Group expects
that the use of 2G antennas will be reduced sharply, leading to the possible significantly
decrease in the realisable value of the dispatched 2G products, as such, provision for

impairment has been increased.

The Group believes that these adjustments will not have impact on the competitiveness
in the industry and long-term profitability of the Group, being confident in the future

business performance.
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Taxation

Current income tax expenses decreased by approximately 96.6% from approximately
RMBI12.61 million in 2016 to approximately RMB0.426 million in 2017. Effective tax
rates calculated from the tax charged to the profit before taxation of the Group were

approximately 0.7% and 17.5% for 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Profit for the year

Profit for the year 2017 decreased by approximately 173.7% to a loss of approximately
RMB48.51 million (2016: a profit for the year of approximately RMB65.85 million). The
Group's net profit margin was approximately -3.4% in 2017, compared to approximately
4.5% in 2016. The decrease in our net profit margin was mainly due to the decrease in
revenue and the increase in administrative expenses, research and development costs and

provision for asset impairment.
Relationships with equipment manufacturers, operators and suppliers

The Group mainly sells antenna products and RF subsystem products to
telecommunication equipment manufacturer customers (such as ZTE) who builds
complete networks for delivery to telecommunication operators (such as China
Mobile), thus enabling the Group to establish close and stable relations with equipment

manufacturers.

The Group is also one of the few domestic technology providers offering RF solutions
to both global and domestic telecommunication operators (such as China Mobile, China
Unicom and China Telecom) and telecommunication equipment manufacturers (such
as ZTE and Nokia), which enables the Company to maintain a leading edge in product
technology and continuous expansion of customer channels, and thus to build close and

solid relations with global and domestic telecommunication operators.

Suppliers of the Group include raw material suppliers and contract manufacturers. The
Group has developed solid and steady relationships with many of its key suppliers.
Given solid and steady relationships with the suppliers, the Group believes that its
suppliers generally provide supplies to the Group with a priority and the Group has not
experienced any material shortage or delays in receiving supplies or services from the

suppliers during the track record period.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

BEEENRRE DM

BIE

EHMEHAYA0IFEHNARE 120 8
O #996.6%E2017TFHARENCE
7T o REE R 2017 F 2016 5 B B A A
SEMERMEDRIAR07%K17.5% °

FRFE

2017 FFBERAK 173.7% BB FAEEL
AR¥4851 BL(2016F : FRABHAR
65858 7T) o REEMR 2017 FEREFIEL
R-34% " M2016F 4 /R45% ° fEHETE
TEZHNEERATRE  THAX - HE
PN DA R B 7 R (B ZE A S NPT B

RREH  BEEBRHEENEE

AKETERERRER FHETRREM
REERBREF(MTEBAE) iR
T ERN BB RN % (a0 B
BHE) EEAKEEREEHELTEY)

BRRERBEE -

{4_\.—| pos

$%@W%ﬁw¢ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁw
EREZR(NTEES PEBANTE
ﬁ EEREE(NPERR  HED
IRULET SRR T RO BRI ML IERS - B (E
ZS/ AR BRI E RN EENEP
BBOTERE - EMAZKEBEANEEE
EHEN TEYERENBR

\_/4\

T

AEENHEFBRERMHAEEE LI
ER - AREEA ﬁ%%%x%%ﬁkiT%
NERTENEER HAREEHEENARE
WER  AKERE AREHER—
BEAAKEHRE  MAKEREELEY
] A (1 5 7 WO P 3 AR A5 X B R 2
KRR °

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWR DN

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the Group. Major

risks and uncertainties are summarised below.
Brand/Reputation Risk

The Company has established and maintained its MOBI brand that aims to brand the
products of the Group including antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage
extension solution, primarily targeting leading system equipment manufacturers and
telecommunication operators worldwide for provision of its RF solution. If the Group
is unsuccessful in promoting its MOBI brand or fails to maintain its brand position and
market perception, system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators’
acceptance of its MOBI brand may erode, and the Group's business, financial condition,

results of operations and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

Any negative publicity or dispute relating to the Group's MOBI brand, products,
sponsorship activities or management, the loss of any award or accreditation associated
with the Group’s MOBI brand or products or the use of the “MOBI" trademark or brand
name by other businesses could materially and adversely affect the Group's business,

financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Market Trend

The Group's success depends on the market perception and customer acceptance of
MOBI brand and the Group's products, which in large part, rely on the Group's ability to

anticipate and respond to different market demands in a timely manner.

If the Group is unable to utilise new technologies and processes, anticipate and respond
to market and new technology trends and customer preferences in a timely manner,
demand for MOBI products may decrease. The Group's business would also suffer if
product creations or modifications do not respond to the needs of customers, are not
appropriately timed with market opportunities or are not effectively brought to market.
Any failure by the Group to offer products that respond to changing market and customer
preferences, or any shift in market or new technologies and processes and customer
preferences away from MOBI brand and the Group's products, could adversely affect
customers' interest in the Group's products.
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Competition

Currently, the Group's antenna system products, base station RF subsystem products
and coverage extension solution products face different levels of competition in their
respective market sectors. As competitors with similar brand positioning may emerge
and intensify the current competition, there can be no assurance that the Group will be
able to compete effectively against competitors who may have greater financial resources,
greater scales of production, superior technology, better brand recognition and a wider
and more diverse distribution network. To compete effectively and maintain the Group's
market share, the Group may be forced to, among other actions, reduce prices and
increase capital expenditures, which may in turn negatively affect the Group's profit

margins, business and financial conditions and results of operations

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group's production process is carried out with low emissions and low energy
consumption, and it will not produce great amount of pollutants. The Group has been
endeavouring to ensure that the production process is in compliance with relevant

environmental rules and regulations.
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In the past, the Group has not been in breach of any relevant environmental rules and
regulations and has not been imposed any relevant penalty. It is expected that the future
operational activities of the Group would not be affected by the environmental policies.
The Group strives for energy conservation and consumption reduction. In reducing the

operating costs, the Group also puts efforts in environmental protection.
Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in mainland
China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group's operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 3| December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
to the best of our knowledge, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong, and there was no material breach of or

non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS
Prospects

Looking forward, the Group will pay attention to both domestic and international markets
simultaneously and will continue to focus on the area of RF technology for wireless
communication, especially on base station RF technology and RF technology for other

wireless communications.

The Group believes that the popularity of smart terminals has driven the application
of mobile internet into a rapid development pace. Pursuant to the Work Report
of the Central Government in 2017 suggested “to fully implement the plan for
developing strategic emerging industries, accelerate the development of new materials,
artificial intelligence, integrated circuits, bio pharmaceuticals, fifth generation mobile
communications technology research and transformation, and develop industrial clusters
in these fields”. It is expected that 5G standard-setting and trial commercial operation will
be completed between 2018 and 2020, and will be officially on use since 2020. Certain
upgrading opportunities will be provided by 5G, including the demand for the construction
of new base station and reconstruction of the roof of existing base station. Due to the
non-independent networking standard of 5G at the current stage which requires to share
the core network with 4G, the roof of base station will be overlapped on a large scale,
bringing a huge demand for reconstruction, which means that the existing the antennas
such as GSM, TD-LTE and NB-loT will be replaced by multi-frequency and multi-system
antennas with high technical sophistication. With the Group's leading position in customer
channels and 5G technology, the Group is in place to capture early opportunities riding on

the development waves of 5G.

In the global arena, the overseas 4G cycle will last much longer than that in China.
Although 5G is coming soon, 4G technology will still be the mainstream in the global
network construction for a long time in the future. With its leading product technology
of overseas multi-frequency system, the Group achieved satisfying breakthroughs in
European operators in 2017 particularly its significant improvement in various aspects
such as product technology, quality standards and technical process experiences. In future,
the Group will further develop the markets of overseas network operators, continuously
enter the short lists of multinational and major regional network operators and continue
to increase the Group's share in the global market on a long-term basis. It is foreseeable
that the global market share of the Group s still extremely small at present, as such, the
continuous expansion of the global market will not only push the way up in periodic

development for the next few vears, but also achieve sustained growth in a longer period.
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Customers

The Group adheres to the visionary target of “becoming a global leading provider of RF
technology for mobile communications”, and strives to offer its RF solution to leading

system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators around the world.

The Group is also one of the few domestic technology providers offering RF solutions to
both global system equipment manufacturers and telecommunication operators, which
enables the Group to maintain a leading edge in product technology and continuous

expansion of customer channels.

In 2017, successfully completed structural adjustments in the domestic operator market,
the Group experienced a substantial increase in sales to China Telecom and obtained
a leading share in China Mobile's procurement tender while still maintaining powerful
cooperation with China Unicom. As such, in 2018, the Group will maintain the dominant
position in the implementation of projects by Chinese operators including low-band

refarming and NB-loT, as well as China Unicom'’s procurement of 900M antenna.
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In terms of domestic equipment manufacturers, the Group still possess advantage as a
leading supplier with its leading competitiveness in aspects such as product technologies

and customer communications.

As for international equipment manufacturers, in 2017, the Group recorded an overall
increase in sales of antenna and RF subsystem products to Nokia, representing over 40%
in overall growth rate. Meanwhile, the Group also obtained the supplier qualification
of Ericsson'’s global radio frequency subsystem products in 2017. It is believed that the
Company will make a promising business performance regarding international equipment

manufacturers in 2018.

After years of efforts, the Group believes it will embrace a window for golden
opportunities in direct sales to international operators. In 2017, the Group's revenue of
direct sales to intemnational operators significantly increased by nearly 60% as compared
to the previous year, which was recognized by many European customers. The Group
believes that the direct sales growth in international operators will become another strong

driving force for the business growth of the Group in the next few years.
Products

5G is approaching closer. Pursuant to the Work Report of the Central Government
in 2017, it is expected that 5G standard-setting and trial commercial operation will be
completed between 2018 and 2020, and will be officially on use since 2020. Certain
upgrading opportunities will be provided by 5G, including the demand for the construction
of new base station and reconstruction of the roof of existing base station. These will
contribute to the increasing demand for high-end antennas, including TD-LTE multi-
frequency and multi-system antennas. The Group believes that the technical threshold of
advanced high-end antennas can be favourable for the Group's competition, while with
the increasing complicated 5G radio frequency subsystems, the Group has received some
demands from customers. In general, the Group believes that by virtue of the Group's
leading position in technologies of 5G antennas and radio frequency subsystems, the

Group is in place to capture early opportunities riding on the network construction of 5G.
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Globally, the overseas 4G cycle will last much longer than that in China. Although
5G is coming soon, 4G technology will still be the mainstream in the global network
construction for a long time in the future. Further technology upgrading of multi-frequency
and multi-system antennas will be provided by overseas LTE network construction and
multi-network stations, getting closer to limit design. The Group has been accumulating
experience for many vyears in the technology of multi-frequency and multi-system
antennas, the Group believes, which enables the Group to accomplish the upgrading of
antenna development platform with its capability, catering for the ever-evolving demand

for international operators.

For coverage extension products, the Group obtained leading shares in the centralized
procurement tender of aesthetic antenna for China Mobile and China Telecom in 2017,
while the Group will step up efforts in promoting the delivery under contract of aesthetic

antenna and achieving a positive growth in business in 2018.
Conclusion

The Group is one of the few one-stop solution providers of RF technology for global
network operators and system equipment manufacturers in the PRC, capitalizing on
a wide range of well-known customers and diversified income sources positive for its

healthy and stable growth.

The Group believes that the telecommunication equipment industry is expected to see
another growth cycle as the 4G network continues to develop over the next few years.
The Group and the Board will continue to optimise the size and mix of customer base
and adopt differentiated competition strategies underpinned by technology and cost
advantages to maximise the market opportunities in 3G, LTE and next generation wireless
technologies, thus enhancing Group's overall competitiveness to ensure robust business

performance and create more value for shareholders and the society.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES BRER  RBESRUBER

We have funded our operations and capital requirements from cash generated from our AREBEDHER HEBRRENEIEER

operations, trade credit from our suppliers and short-term bank borrowings. Our primary HHETEIMEENB ST AREELE

uses of cash have been for our increased working capital needs, capital expenditures NEAREX KEBHNHESFERERIA

on purchases of production equipment and acquisition of land use rights for our real EEEAMNEEEST K BEEEREBM

properties in Shenzhen, Jian and Xi'an in the PRC, TEAEINWEAREEERRFY - FX
TG %2 B f5 b 22 ) + b 56 PR A

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current assets of approximately RMB649.26 RI7FNA3IB REBEFEFLRHE
million (2016: approximately RMB842.98 million) including inventories of approximately EHAR®E 649268 T(2016%F : HARE
RMB413.38 million (2016: approximately RMB340.20 million), trade receivables and 8429818 L) BEFENHARKAI338E
notes receivable of approximately RMB905.57 million (2016: approximately RMB872.33  TT(2016% : #I AR 3402018 77T) - B E
million) and trade payables and notes payable of approximately RMB720.69 million (2016: R REWERHARY0557E (2016
approximately RMB538.12 million). F:HARBNBELT)ARENE FHE
HRENZREHOARB7206918 7T(2016
FHARBES38I2(ET) °
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The Group maintained effective management of its working capital. For the year ended
31 December 2017, average inventories turnover, average receivables turnover and
average payables turnover are approximately |17 days (2016: |16 days), 228 days (2016:
225 days) and 195 days (2016: 192 days) respectively. We offer credit terms generally
accepted in the antenna and base station RF subsystem manufacturing industry to our
trade customers. In general, the average credit period for local network operators is

longer than global network operators and solution providers.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a pledged bank balance of approximately
RMBI166.66 million (2016: approximately RMBI124.61 million), cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB190.46 million (2016: approximately RMB291.48 million) and recorded
bank borrowings of approximately RMB287.46 million (2016: approximately RMB256.27
million). The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) decreased from
approximately 1.98 times as at 31 December 2016 to approximately |.56 times as at
31 December 2017. The gearing ratio (bank borrowings divided by total assets) was
approximately 12.2% as at 31 December 2017 as compared with a gearing ratio of
approximately |1.7% as at 31 December 2016. The interest rates on the Group's bank

borrowings are designated as fixed rates or floating rates based on prevailing market rates.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group has a solid and stable financial position and
adequate resources to satisfy necessary operating capital requirements and foreseeable

capital expenditures.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Currencies other than RMB expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. We have foreign currency sales and purchases and certain
trade receivables and bank balances are denominated in USD, Euro, CHF and HKD.
We currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management

monitors and will consider hedging of foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 3,901 staff. The total staff
costs amounted to approximately RMB349.94 million for the year ended 2017. The
remuneration of the Group's employees is determined on the basis of their responsibilities
and industry practices. Regular training is provided to improve the skills and expertise of
relevant staff. The Group also grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible

staff based on their performance.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, bank balances of approximately RMBI66.66 million and note
receivables of approximately RMB70.66 million were mainly pledged to bank to secure the

bills payables and bank loans of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During 2017, a total amount of 295,000 shares of the Company had been repurchased at
prices ranging from HK$1.15 per share to HK$1.19 per share by the Company via Stock
Exchange. The Company had subsequently cancelled all these shares repurchased during
the year. Save as mentioned above, neither the Company nor the Company or any of
its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the

current year.
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DIVIDEND

To share the fruitful results of the Group among all the shareholders, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per share out of distributable
reserve of the Company in respect of the year ended 3| December 2017. The date of
closure of the register of members of the Company regarding the entitlement of final
dividend will be published in due course. The proposed final dividend will be paid on 5
July 2018 following approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM™).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 24 May 2018 (“2018
AGM"), the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 18 May
2018 to Thursday, 24 May 2018, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2018 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the
Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
[712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, |7 May 2018.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the final dividend, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 30 May 2018
to Thursday, 31 May 2018, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the Company's share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, I7/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 29 May 2018,
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of corporate governance

to maximize the operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder returns of
the Company. The Company adopted sound governance and disclosure practices and
continued to upgrade internal control system, strengthen risk control management and

reinforce the corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board comprises seven Directors, including three executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The following sets

out the composition of the Board, by category of Directors:

Executive Directors:
Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Liao Dong

Chen Zhaojun

Non-executive Directors:

Qu Degian

Independent non-executive Directors:
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Li Guinian

The Board's composition demonstrates a balance of core competence with regard to the
business of the Group so as to provide effective leadership and the required expertise to
the Group. The executive Directors and senior management have extensive management
experience in the wireless communication antennas and base station RF subsystems
industry. The biographical details and experience of the Directors and senior management

are set out on pages 79 to 86 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships among

members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and is entrusted with the
responsibility to supervise the overall management of the business, including establishing
and overseeing the Group's strategic development, business plans, financial objectives,
capital investment proposals and assumes the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing its
business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group's businesses to the

executive Directors and members of senior management of the Group.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by
business needs. During the year ended 31 December 2017, four Board meetings, two
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) meetings, one remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) meeting and one nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) meeting were convened. Details of attendance of Board meetings of each of
the members of the Board are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each Director at least 14 days prior to
the meeting, whereby the Directors can put forward his proposed items into the agenda.
The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then circulated to the Directors not less
than 3 days before a Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make an informed

decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 3| December 2017, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as

set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Hu Xiang is both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development directions for the
Group and for the daily management of the business of the Group, implementation of the
policies, business objectives and plans set by the Board and is accountable to the Board

for the overall operation of the Group.
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Code Provision A.2.1

This code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr. Hu Xiang
is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hu is one of the
founders of the Group and has extensive experience in the telecommunication industry.
Given the current stage of development of our Group, the Board believes that vesting
the two roles in the same person provides our Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of our Group's business
strategies. We shall nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the

prevailing circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is three years. Under the Company's Articles of Association,
one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting provided that every Director

shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Director, namely Li Tianshu,
Zhang Han and Li Guinian and one non-executive Director, namely Qu Degian. The

Remuneration Committee is chaired by Li Tianshu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's business successfully. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the Directors and
senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration packages.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:
. formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

. recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration of

Directors and senior management;
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. determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,

including benefits in kind and compensation payments;

. review and approval of the compensation arrangements in connection with any
loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal for

misconduct to executive Directors and senior management; and
. determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance.
No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the Company's remuneration policies, the terms of the service
contracts and the performance of all executive Directors and senior management. Details
of attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings of each of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out in note 10 to

the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Li Tianshu, Zhang Han and Li Guinian, one non-executive Director, namely Qu Degian
and one executive Director, namely, Hu Xiang. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Hu Xiang. Currently all new appointments to the Board will be considered by the Board

whose deliberations are based on the following criteria:

. possession of core competencies, including but not limited to financial literacy,
that are appropriate to the Company's business and complement the skills and

competencies of the existing Directors on the Board,

. ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively;
and

. possession of a good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/
organizations.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Details of attendance of Nomination Committee meeting of
each of the members of the Nomination Committee are meeting of each of the members
of the Nomination Committee set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings”

below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit Committee comprises
all the independent non-executive Directors. Zhang Han is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for communication between the Directors,
the external auditors and chief financial officer as regards their duties relating to, among
other things, financial and other reporting, internal controls and external audits and
to assist the Board in fuffilling its responsibilities by providing independent view and

supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge their duties.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

. to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of

external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of such appointments;

. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

. to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external auditor for non-

audit services;

. to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports and
the auditor’s report to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced

assessment of the Group's financial position;
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. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

. to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and internal

control systems;

. to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an effective internal

control system; and

. to review the external auditor's management letter and any questions raised by the

auditor to the management and the management’s response.

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December
2017. The Audit Committee reviewed, together with the management and the external
auditors, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and statutory compliance.
In addition to reviewing the Group's risk management and internal control systems and
the effectiveness of the internal audit function, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
independence of the external auditors and approved the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors. Details of attendance of Audit Committee meetings
of each of the members of the Audit Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual

Directors at Meetings” below.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The Code Provision stipulates that the board should meet regularly for at least 4 times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual Directors
at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the annual general meeting during the year ended 3| December

2017, respectively, is set forth in the table below:

Remuneration

Board Committee

Name of Director EEfS Exe YMEES
Hu Xiang ikl 4/4 N/A
TEHA

Liao Dong =9 4/4 N/A
TNEA

Chen Zhaojun BRIKE 4/4 N/A
TE A

Qu Degian BEe 4/4 [/1
Li Tianshu EREF 444 /1
Zhang Han 9 4/4 /1
Li Guinian THF 4/4 1/l

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. From time to time, Directors are provided with written
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills. The Directors had fuffilled the

relevant requirements under A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code during the year

ended 3| December 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

Pursuant to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than
I'5 hours of relevant professional training in each financial year. The Company Secretary
is Mr. Lau Wing and has taken more than |5 hours of relevant professional development

during the year ended 31 December 2017.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”), without prejudice to
and in addition to complying with the applicable requirements set forth in the Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations, the Company has since |7 December 2009,
the date on which its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange adopted a stringent system
to avoid potential conflict of interests respecting transactions (“Relevant Transactions™) in
which any Directors are interested in, and transactions with any of our connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any company in which the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or its shareholders, individually
or collectively, owns a direct or indirect equity interest of 10% or above (including
transactions with ZTE Corporation, Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd, Shenzhen
Zhongxingxindi Technologies Co., Ltd, and Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd.)

(“Relevant Companies”), as follows:

() Any Relevant Transactions be approved by way of a resolution passed by a majority
of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, provided
that any non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director interested
in the transactions in question will declare his or her interest and will abstain from

voting on such matters;

(2)  Any Director has a conflict of interest will not participate or be involved in matters

relating to the Relevant Transactions;
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(3)  An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) comprising the chief financial
officer and the deputy financial officer of the Company has been established to
monitor, review and manage all Relevant Transactions, and to prepare semi-annual
report in relation to the execution of the Relevant Transactions (““Semi-annual

Report™) for the supervisory committee's (the “Supervisory Committee”) review;

(4)  The Supervisory Committee comprising three independent non-executive
Directors (each of whom shall not have any interest in any transaction under
consideration by the Supervisory Committee and shall not be in a position of
conflict of interest when acting in such capacity) has been set up, among other
things, to supervise the Executive Committee, review and approve the terms and
conditions of continuing connected transactions and Relevant Transactions, devise
and review rules and guidelines for the Executive Committee to follow, review
Semi-annual Report from the Executive Committee, report its findings to the Board
and give recommendations to the Board to ensure that the Relevant Transactions
will be entered into in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole;

and

(5)  The Board will disclose the decisions, findings and recommendations on the
transactions reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Supervisory Committee

in the Company's interim and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two meetings were held by the Supervisory
Committee to review the report on Relevant Transactions in respect of the sales and
purchase entered into by the Group with the Relevant Companies pepared by the
Executive Committee. As reported by the Supervisory Committee, (i) it had reviewed
and approved the master agreements entered into by the Group and the Relevant
Companies and considered the terms and conditions therein were fair and reasonable; (ii)
it had reviewed the supplier procurement bidding documents and intemal procurement
procedures of the Group; (iii) it had devised and reviewed rules and guidelines for
Executive Committee and the Executive Committee had followed accordingly; and (iv)
it had reviewed the report submitted by the Executive Committee. The Supervisory
Committee considered Relevant Transactions conducted during the review period were
in line with the respective master agreements and the internal procedures of the Group,
were on fair and normal commercial terms and there was no other matter that needs to

be brought to the attention of the Board and shareholders of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants (“Deloitte”), the external
auditors of the Company, were responsible for providing services in connection with the

audit of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total remuneration in respect of audit services

provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted to approximately RMB2.55 million.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the view) that,
subject to shareholders” approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte be re-appointed as
the external auditors of the Company for 2018.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position and prospects. The management provides such
explanations and information to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the

matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of
the Group and for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with

applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner within the limits of three

months after the end of the financial period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The main objectives of the Group's risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting

mechanism to facilitate the Group in managing risks across its business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the Board
of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Taskforce. The Board of
Directors determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and has overall responsibility for monitoring the design,
implementation and effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management and internal control

systems.
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The Group has formulated and adopted a Risk Management Policy for providing direction
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks on at least an annual basis, the Risk
Management Taskforce identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of
standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans are established and risk owners are then assigned

for the management of those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit function to assist the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee with ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
interal control systems of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of
internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for their remediation.
Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the

Board of Directors on a timely basis to ensure that they are promptly addressed.

Risk management and internal control reports are submitted to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors at least once a year. The Board of Directors performs an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
including, but not limited to, changes in the nature and extent of significant risks after
the review in the prior year, the Group's ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality of the management's ongoing
monitoring of risks and internal control systems; results of internal audit work; the extent
and frequency of communication of the results of monitoring of risk management and
internal control systems to the Board of Directors; significant failures or weaknesses
identified and their related implications; and the effectiveness of the Group's processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. Following its review for the year ended
31 December 2017, the Board of Directors considers the Group's risk management and

interal control systems are effective.

The risk management and intemal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable

and not absolute assurance against matenial misstatement or loss.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR THE HANDLING AND
DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has established an Inside Information Policy for the handling and dissemination
of Inside Information. The Group complies with requirements of the Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO™) and the Listing Rules. It discloses inside information to the public as
soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours,
as provided in the SFO. Before information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures it is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is committed
to ensuring that information contained in announcements is not false or misleading as to
material fact, or omission of material fact, and to presenting information in a clear and

balanced way, including through equal disclosure of both positive and negative information.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders” meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Stock Exchange after each shareholders” meeting,
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 79 of our Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall also be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
An extraordinary general meeting may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 30 Days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to

them by the Company.
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(i)  Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general meetings may
achieve so by means of convening an extraordinary general meeting following the

procedures set out in paragraph (i) above.

As regards the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

Director, they are available on our Company's website (www.mobi-antenna.com).

(i)  Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquires to our Company by addressing them to the Company Secretary by mail at

Room 1902, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 December, 2017, there has not been any change in the

Company's constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, information of the
Stock Exchange, a corporate website, and general and investor meetings. The Group is
going to report to its shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular dialogue with

investors.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each

substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.
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R HERERERS

INTRODUCTION

Corporate Profile of MOBI

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The shares of
the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 17 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and base
station Radio Frequency (“RF") subsystems in China. Our business consists of the design,
manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem and solutions
that are the required components of mobile communication coverage systems, including,
wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA), 3G (TD-SCDMA, CDMA
2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), 4G (TD-LTE and FDD-LTE), 5G, MIMO antennas, satellite

communication and microwave transmission networks.
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We sell our products to network operators in China and overseas directly for deployment
into the networks they are constructing and operating. We also sell our products to some
of the world's leading wireless network solution providers who incorporate our products
into their wireless coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they

then sell to network operators worldwide.

The Company relies on scientific management and a people-oriented corporate
culture in pursuing “dedication, devotion, pragmatism and pioneership”. We deem it
our responsibility to provide our employees with an ideal working environment and
development opportunities so that they can exert their full potential. Through scientific
management, we aim to create a good working atmosphere for employees while providing
reasonable incentives to promote their healthy growth. It is our relentless pursuit to satisfy

customers, employees, investors and the whole community.

The Company adheres to the principle of sustainable development and lays great
emphasis on environmental protection throughout its entire product life cycle in the
course of its business operations, from product design and development, procurement of
parts and components, manufacturing to product delivery. Through systematic planning
and operation, we ensure that the impact on the environment is minimized, and that the
use of resources is efficient so as to reduce resource consumption and achieve energy

conservation.

In the establishment of its management system, the Company passed the 1SO 900
Quality Management Systems Certification, TL 9000 Quality Management System
Certification, ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification and OHSAS
18001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certification. It made efforts
in Electronics Industry Citizenship Coalition (EICC), social responsibility management,
risk management, carbon emission and corporate governance by setting up and strictly

complying with corresponding policies and standards, thereby achieving substantial results.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long-term

partnerships with our customers.

COMPANY VISION

“Becoming a global leading provider of RF technology for mobile communications.”
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CORPORATE MISSION

“Explore and walk on the path to survival and development of the Company with
collective intelligence from employees; continuously bring management and technology
innovation into practice; and develop MOBI into a global leading provider of RF

technology for mobile communications.”

CORE VALUES OF THE COMPANY
“Accountability, devotion, diligence and efficiency, team-spirit, care for people, mutual

respect”

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT PHILOSOPHY OF THE COMPANY
“Human resources is the core to the sustainable rapid development of the Company, we
pay close attention to the performance and remuneration of the employees, as well as

their development.”

TABLE OF CONTENTS
About this report
Environmental/Occupational Health and Safety Policy of MOBI
General Rules on Corporate Social Responsibility of MOBI
Devotion to Environmental Protection
Emissions
Use of Resources: Energy, water and other raw materials
Environment and Natural Resources
Conflict Minerals
Establishment of a Team of Excellence
Staff Employment
Health and Safety
Development and Training
Labor Standards
Staff Activities: Cultural Campaigns and Recreational Sports
Responsible Supply Chain and Product Liability Management
Supply Chain Management
Product Liability
Compliance in Operation
Compliance with Laws and Regulations
Anti-corruption
Community Involvement and Visit and Guidance of Officials of the Govermment
Community Involvement

Visit and Guidance of Officials of the Government
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the requirements set out in the ESG Reporting Guidelines, Appendix 27
of the Main Board Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the
Company is pleased to publish this report on the environmental, social and governance
aspects for the disclosure on the relevant information (this “Report”). This Report covers
the period from | January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting Period"”). This
Report covers the performance of MOBI Development's subsidiaries in three places
of operation (Shenzhen, Guangdong Xi'an, Shaanxi, and Ji'an, Jiangxi) with respect to

environmental, social and governance.

The Board of Directors of the Company assumes full responsibility for the overall
environmental, social and governance strategy and reporting of the Company. The
Board is responsible for assessing and determining the Company's risks in relation to
environment, society and governance and for ensuring that the Company establishes
appropriate and effective environmental, social and governance risk management
and internal control systems, while the management is responsible for monitoring
and managing the risks associated with environment, society and governance and the

effectiveness of the management system.

The Company conducts business activities in a responsible and sustainable manner
to create value for employees, customers and shareholders, as well as to fulfill its
commitment to the environment and society. We understand that air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land and generation of waste can adversely
affect the environment and we understand the scarcity of natural resources. Therefore,
the Company will persist in adopting appropriate measures to achieve sustainable
development during its business operation. We are convinced that sustainability in business
is not just window dressing, but is essential to the development of the Company. By
adopting sustainable practices, we will gain a competitive edge, increase our market share
and bring value to our shareholders in the long run. On top of that, we will keep a focus

on social responsibility and continue to take actions for the benefit of the community.
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The management of the Group regularly reviews the operation of its various departments,
identifies relevant environmental, social and governance issues and assesses the significance
of these issues to our business and our stakeholders. We will disclose in this Report the
environmental, social and governance issues we deem to be most material. Based on
the materiality assessment, this Report serves to provide an overview of our sustainable
development principles, policies and actual practices under five topics, namely Devotion
to Environmental Protection, Establishment of a Team of Excellence, Responsible Supply
Chain and Product Liability Management, Compliance in Operations and Community

Involvement and Visit and Guidance of Officials of the Government.

ENVIRONMENTAL/OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY OF
MOBI

We are committed to: conducting our business activities in a manner that take
responsibility for the environment and the health and safety of our staff, fulfilling our
responsibilities in protecting the environment and promoting the health and safety of our

staff, in order to provide more competitive products and services to our customers.

To this end, we have developed a clear environmental/occupational health and safety

management policy, requiring us to:

Maintain precautions for strengthening risk management,

Comply with environmental regulations, raise the awareness of all parties,

Promote green operations, step up emissions reduction,

Pay attention to employee health, ensure safe production,

Optimize environmental and safety performance, encourage continuous improvement,

Collaborate with all stakeholders, achieve synergies and progress.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Details of the environmental/occupational health and safety management policy are as

follows:

> Adhere to the ideology of maintaining precautions in the first place, establish
and maintain a documented management system, to achieve systematic and
standardized management, and strengthen the identification, assessment and
control of sources of danger and environmental risk factors, to prevent pollution

and accidents;

> Comply with international conventions, laws and regulations and other
requirements, continue to provide education and training on the environment and
health and safety, enhance the awareness, knowledge and skills of employees in
terms of the environment and health and safety, to enhance the initiatives of all

employees in taking part;

> Promote the philosophy of green operations and adhere to the sustainable
development strategy, taking into account the whole life cycle of product, and
adopting concrete measures in all aspects to prevent harm to the environment,

reduce energy and resource consumption, and strive for environmental affinity;

> Put the health and safety of our staff in the first place to ensure that all business
activities strictly comply with respective working procedures and policies, so as to
create a healthy and safe working environment for our employees and pursue zero

injuries and zero accidents;

> Continuously optimize environmental and safety management performance,
we persevere in developing new technologies, processes and products that are
beneficial to the environment and the health and safety of our employees, and

always search for better solutions;

We advocate the concept of environment, health and safety, and incorporate related
requirements into our supply chain management activities, to improve performance
from the perspective of the overall supply chain, with a pursuit of a harmonious balance
between corporate development, social responsibility and the health and safety of our

employees.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

RiE  #HERERES

RS/ BERRL2EBHHABMAT :

> BEBEVAINIERRE BEYIR
BXMHEMEREER  BTRGEM
RBEBEWERE  BRIEBRRRRER
A B - FFEMES - RS
FoMHBEH

> ETRELHN EZREAREETE
Ko HESARFERER AN
HERIIGR BEETRFEREY
ENEMOER  MBMREE - BA2
S0k )l

> EERGKEET BRURERRE
B NEREEESBERAEE
B ERERSHRONBERE D
HRENRE BRELRMNERH
M BONBRBERM

> RABMREREHELEEN @
RESBELEDRHEBRENTS
B2 RS - B — AL A S
REMZ2EREOTHES &%
TEETEY

> BEMERFNBEZEZEREN
BRIE THREHRERARR
REZ2BHF MM - 3 TE L
Em BREBBEENIENRER
i REELH]:

RABTRLZEES  URSRBRBAMR
FERERLY  {ERRERORERE
Mo BREEER HEEENASRRER
BHOMEG—  (RERFES -

51



52

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERERS

Safe production is a core value of the Company. It is the Company's basic responsibility
to prevent casualties and fatalities of our employees and to create a safe and healthy
working environment. The Company strives to become an outstanding organization with
continuous improvement and long-term development. In developing the Company's
strategic objectives, and in conducting daily operations, the Company will consider such

factors as economy, environment, health, safety and social responsibility.

All of our management personnel are the medium to promote our priorities in the
environment, health and safety, and the exponent for putting such ideas into practice. All
employees are required to comply with the Company's safety regulations and policies.
Employees are the Company's most essential wealth and each employee's contribution
to the Company is unique and value-adding. The Company encourages, recognizes and
rewards employees for their active contribution to the Company's environmental, safety

and health performance.

GENERAL RULES ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY OF MOBI
The Company manages its social responsibility and commitment within the scope of
its control and influence, and the management system and regulations formulated by
the Company comply with national laws and regulations and internationally recognized
SAB000 ethical standards.

This includes the principles of the following international agreements and the relevant
national laws, regulations and policies: International Labor Organization Convention 29
and Convention 105 (forced labor and debt-bondage), Intemational Labor Organization
Convention 87 (freedom of association), International Labor Organization Convention 98
(right to organize and collective bargaining), Intemational Labor Organization Convention
100 and Convention |11 (equal remuneration and anti-discrimination), International Labor
Organization Convention 135 (workers' representatives), International Labor Organization
Convention 138 and Recommendation 146 (minimum age and recommendations),
Intemational Labor Organization Convention 155 and Recommendation |64 (occupational
safety and health), International Labor Organization Convention 159 (vocational
rehabilitation and employment), International Labor Organization Convention |77 (home
work), The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child under The Universal
Declaration of Human Rights, Prohibition of Using Child Labor (Order No. 81 of the State
Coundil) under The Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Regulatory Standards
for Penalties Against the Employment of Child Labor (Ministry of Labor, MOF Document,
Laolizi(1992) 27), Regulations on the Special Protection of the Minority Workers and
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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The Company hires, manages and assigns, employees in accordance with the provisions
of the Labor Law to pay the salaries of employees at standards higher than local minimum
wages and complies with the provisions of the Labor Law on working hours, overtime

compensation and remuneration. We strictly prohibit the recruitment of child labor.

The Company undertakes not to use any form of forced or involuntary labor and does
not require employees to pay a “deposit” or hand in identification documents at the

beginning of their employment.

The Company has appointed a senior management representative to be responsible for
the health and safety of all employees, and has formed the Safety Production Committee
which is responsible for ensuring and achieving safe production on the part of the
Company. The Company has established an occupational health and safety mechanism
to effectively identify sources of danger and to reduce and prevent potential threats
to employees' health and safety through hazard assessment, preventive measures and

emergency response mechanisms.

The Company is committed to providing a safe, clean, healthy and productive working
environment for all employees by providing necessary drinking water, medical and
sanitation facilities, fire safety and proper ventilation. The Company will also take necessary
measures to minimize possible hazards in the workplace in order to avoid work-related

accidents and health hazards.

The Company regularly reviews health and safety conditions in the workplace, canteens

and dormitories, and makes constant improvements based on issues identified.

The Company provides training for all employees on health and safety, energy
conservation, environmental protection and various management systems and standards. It

also provides induction training for new staff, and retraining for transferring staff.

The Company has formed a trade union which helps its members to safeguard their
legitimate rights and interests and assists with solving any special difficulties they have. The
Company respects the freedom of all employees to participate in the trade union, and

collective bargaining as well as their freedom of association.
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The Company is strictly prohibited from engaging in or supporting matters based on
race, ethnicity, social hierarchy, nationality, religion, physical disability, gender, age, sexual
orientation, trade union membership or political discrimination in matters relating to the
appointment, remuneration, welfare, training opportunities, promotion, discipline, dismissal

or retirement.

The Company fully respects the personal religious beliefs and ethnic customs of
employees. We prohibit any personal discrimination and infringement of rights. The
Company does not interfere with the rights of employees to observe their religious beliefs

and customs.

The Company respects and treats every employee impartially. It prohibits compulsive,
abusive or exploitative acts of intrusion in the form of gesture, language and physical
contact. The Company does not engage in or support corporal punishment, mental or

physical persecution and verbal humiliation.

The Company actively takes measures against extortion and bribery or any form of

corruption.

The Company promotes fair and orderly competition and prohibits unfair competition.

In assessing and shortlisting suppliers, the Company considers the ability of suppliers to
meet the requirements of this policy and prioritizes them on the basis of their ability to

meet the requirements.

If necessary, the Company may provide information and communicate with stakeholders
on, including but not limited to, the results of its management reviews and audits.
The Company may provide stakeholders with reasonable information and access to
information for them to determine whether the Company fulfills its social responsibility
and ethical commitments. If there is any doubt as to whether the Company fulfills its
obligation on social responsibility and ethical commitments, the Company will conduct
timely investigations before handling and responding to related enquiries. If any employee
presents a question as to whether the Company complies with the requirements of those
provisions, the Company will not penalize, dismiss or discriminate against the employee
for it. If any violation of corporate social responsibility and ethical commitments is found,
the Company will take appropriate remedial measures and correctible actions against in

accordance with the severity of its nature.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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The Company engages third parties to conduct annual tracking and auditing of the
relevant management system to ensure that it complies with relevant management
system requirements and standards. In recent years, the Company has also received more
surveys on the environment, safety and health, carbon emissions, conflict minerals from
key customers, to which the Company has given positive feedback. The Company has not
received any complaints and penalties from government, third parties and customers in

these respects.

DEVOTION TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company persists in operating its business in an environmentally responsible manner
and adheres to the concept of sustainable development by taking various measures
to reduce the environmental impact arising from its production and business activities
with an aim of achieving harmonious coexistence with society, the environment and its
stakeholders. The concept of innovation and environmental consciousness have also been
infilttrated into our entire product life cycle and all business processes from research and
development, production, logistics to customer service. We spare no effort in reducing

energy consumption, resource consumption and carbon dioxide emissions.

The Company has been monitoring and managing our emissions for many years. In recent
years, we have also begun to monitor greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption.
We hope to strike a balance between business growth and environmental protection by
improving our business operations and practice, and encouraging employees to work in an

environmentally responsible manner in the workplace.

The Company complies with the EU RoHS and China RoHS-related Directive. We
conduct comprehensive management of hazardous substances from product design,
procurement, production to delivery, to avoid the use of prohibited substances, and
to ensure that the volume of restricted substances is within relevant restricted ranges.
The Company also provides declarations of hazardous substances and the content
of substances for customers that require them. Where necessary, the Company may
also provide inspection reports from third parties on the composition of substances to

customers as required.

The Company complies with the EU WEEE Directive and adopts ecological product
design with full consideration of recyclability of products, generalized design and the most
economical design principle, to satisfy the recovery rate and the recycling rate of products

and to minimize the environmental impact on the product life cycle from the source.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

RiE  #HERERES

N

RAIBFHEFF - TRBHHEREEEER
ETFERBRER - AR QR EEARE
FEBRBRMRBNTAME - LFXK - 2
ABEARSRIREEHREPHRLRE
xbE - RBEBHIANELHE - RAIGHE
TTRBHEE - AARRERIBHRSG
FZAMBFPHEEL T EARFMEE

hu)

HERRRE
ARBEBRERBUYRRABNITALER
% BREMASEERES  TRMZE
B AR A EE R EEIRBEIRF A BEEK
MEE BRGE  RERFEEREENN
A BAKEIH AR ER R E FH B
EmtmBRUALRE LE R &P
REridE  REHRRERER  BRER
M= BB NI -

ARBZFERBEHHNDETEENE
B FERBEARGEIREERE
MegRERE R EZRRNESETE
SRR RMR R RE 2 H0OFE - T8
BTHTESMTPRBERZRENTS

S
=
52
fB0

78 BB RoHS & Bl RoHS B 4 % 15
L REMBF - KB £E - INZRE
ETERREAEMLEEE  BREREAY
B YHREREAVNESEERATHERN -
RERENEFE  RA8REFREBED
EREBBHURMERDREN - RUE
B DRI ARBERAEPREDEK D
= FHEERRIRE

D

NEERE B WEEERES  EEMRETRER
RAERLCRAES  RDERERNAME
WaksEt - BRERFMRE (LR R H
REMOAEWRMBMAEREL - {RE
ITHEREEDBRTERENZ ERESD

&iE -

55



56

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERKRE

In general, the Group's production process and business nature enable low-emission,
low-energy consumption and low pollutant generation. We are committed to operating
our entire business in compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations. The
Group has not violated any relevant environmental regulations and has yet to be subject

to any related penalty.

EMISSIONS

The Company focuses on the waste management arising from its operating process.

The Company mainly adopts mechanical processing, assembly and testing for its

production and does not discharge industrial wastewater.

The Company's domestic wastewater mainly comes from the drainage of office
washrooms and water from its kitchen. There is no discharge of toxic, hazardous or
special substances. For oily waste water produced from cleaning canteen kitchens, solid
waste is first filtered through cleaning tank filters. Preliminary filtered kitchen wastewater
will flow towards a three-stage grease trap, where major pollutants are removed during
grease treatment before being discharged into the municipal sewage pipe network. Toilet
sewage will go through septic tank treatment in the industrial area, and will be discharged

through the local municipal sewage pipe network.

Industrial air emissions arising from the production process of the Company mainly come
from residual lead-free solder exhaust, which is collected from exhaust gas collection
devices installed in the workshops and led to the top floor of the workshops through
pipelines to achieve high-altitude emissions. Meanwhile, we continue to improve the
ventilation of our workshops. The emission of exhaust gases after treatment meet the
“air pollutant emission limit" standards and produces little impact on the surrounding

environment.

The noise sources of the Company include certain production equipment, such as the
CNC punch press, stamping equipment, die-casting equipment, air conditioning units, air
compressors, cooling towers, fans, pumps and other ancillary power equipment. With
reasonable layout of the workshops and routine regular equipment maintenance, the noise
generated in the production process meets the “Standard of Boundary Noise of Industrial

Enterprise” and has limited impact on the surrounding environment.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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The solid waste produced by the Company includes general industrial solid waste,
domestic waste and hazardous waste. Among these, the general industrial solid waste
mainly comprises of production packaging materials, metal scrap, lead-free slag and plastic
scrap, which are sold to relevant external parties after collection by category, for recycling
treatment. Household waste is handled by environmental and health departments after
collection by category. Residual hazardous waste produced during the production process
mainly comprises of oily rags, oily gloves and waste oil, the volume of which falls below
the minimum requirements for transport, and so are regularly delivered to external parties

with relevant qualifications in hazardous waste disposal for collective treatment.

In addition, through continuous improvement of our production process, including the
gradual shift to semi-automatic or fully automated production methods, the Company
strives to enhance production capacity and reduce labor input to increase production
efficiency, while improving staff training and management to improve operating
performance, consummating and standardizing the management system of the Company,
vigorously promoting clean production, and actively pursuing energy-saving measures by
using environmentally friendly materials and improving the utilization of raw materials.
We always use recyclable packaging materials (consumed total of 2,678 tons in 2017) to

reduce pollutant emissions and achieve advanced circular economic standard.

The Company's statistics on waste in 2017 are as follows:
[ Industrial wastewater: none

2. Domestic sewage: 215,752 tons discharged through the local municipal sewage

pipe network

3. Lead-free solder exhaust: traces without significant environmental impact

4. Factory noise: in compliance with regional environmental standards
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5. General solid waste (recyclable): 141.34 tons, due to the expansion of production
lines in Ji'an Plant (newly added RF assembly workshop) and the increase in the
production of Computer Numerical Control (CNC) in Xi'an Plant, increased waste
aluminum scrap and disposal of more idle equipment and scrap, representing an

increase as compared with 2016.

6. Household waste: 521.2 tons, due to the increase of personnel in the three places,

the amount of household waste increased compared with that in 201 6.
7. Hazardous waste: 4.96 tons

The Company consumed total electricity of 12,724,338 KWh in 2017, which was
equivalent to approximately | 1,684.76 tons of indirect carbon emissions (carbon dioxide
(CO2) equivalent); 64,650 liters of liquefied gas, 54,376 liters of gasoline and 321,585
liters of diesel oil, which were equivalent to 458.88 tons of direct carbon emissions (carbon
dioxide (CO2) equivalent).

(Note: As the Company's products have different statistical units and processing procedures, the disclosure
of density values is not yet applicable. The Company is improving internal statistics, indicators and
calculation methods and plans to disclose more scientific and rational density information starting

from next year.)

USE OF RESOURCES: ENERGY, WATER AND OTHER RAW MATERIALS

The main raw materials consumed in the Company’s production are aluminum, copper,
steel, plastic, PCB boards and others. At the product level, we focus on the efficient use of
resources. In the product development stage, we conduct rigorous design and assessment
to assure product features and performance while using a variety of materials in the most
frugal manner by the use of environmentally friendly and recyclable or reusable materials.
This not only ensures that costs can be controlled, but also reduces the consumption of
resources. We promote clean production and strengthen equipment maintenance while

improving energy efficiency.

In our daily office operations, we advocate the concept of energy-saving. Through regular
self-examinations, inspection and reporting, we enhance the awareness and capability
of our staff in energy-saving and reducing emissions. We advocate a paperless office
to reduce the use of paper, and always reuse recyclable wastepaper such as paper for

printing and copying.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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The Company attaches great importance to energy conservation, and puts great effort
into the promotion of environmental protection and energy conservation policies
and measures implemented. For example, we make full use of natural light when the
weather is bright. We always choose energy-saving products when purchasing lamps and
electrical appliances. We switch off idle lights, computers and electrical appliances. Our
air conditioning is generally set at room temperature of above 26 degrees. We conduct
timely maintenance of air conditioners to ensure their good operation. We use video
conferencing systems to reduce business travel. We also post some energy-saving tips on

our intranet to remind employees to practice energy-saving ideas.

Water in the Company comes from the city water supply system. It is mainly used as
domestic water in our offices. Our production process does not involve industrial water
and therefore does not have a serious adverse impact on rivers, lakes and underground
water. We develop and refine water-saving management system with the use of a water

saving faucet, to ensure that the concept of water-saving is implemented in practice.

Achieving the efficient use of resources not only requires a sound management system,
and implementation of relevant policies, but also the cooperation and support of staff.
The Company strives to create a corporate culture that treasures resources, enhances
employee awareness of environmental issues, and encourages employees to participate in

environmental protection and fulfill our environmental commitments.

The major energy and resources consumed by the Company are electricity, water, paper,
natural gas, gasoline and diesel. The following table shows the use of energy resources for

2017 and 2016:

Aggregate Energy Consumption RERUHFEER
Electricity (KWh) B(FREF)

Water (Tons) 7K (1)

Paper (Sheets) #(R)

Canteen liquefied gas (Litres) RERIRF)
Motor gasoline and other (Litres) BRI REAM(H)
Motor diesel and other (Litres) BRSO REM ()
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Among which the consumption of electricity, water, liquefied gas, motor gasoline and
diesel in 2017 increased over that in 2016, mainly due to: I) a 35.41% increase in
personnel; 2) a 6.91% increase in shipments of various types of antennas/RF products, a
27.21% increase in shipments of cables and the increased difficulty in antenna processing;
3) newly built RF assembly plants in Ji'an, additional office area for research institute in
Xi'an; 4) new purchase of a truck and a commercial vehicle; 5) dining frequency increased
from three meals a day to four meals a day (an additional dining time at 20:30). As
the Company's products have different statistical units and processing procedures, the
disclosure of density values is not yet applicable. The Company is improving internal
statistics, indicators and calculation methods and plans to disclose more scientific and
rational density information starting from next year. Shipments of various products in 2017

and 2016 are as follows:

Type %5l

RF (PCS) 5158 (1)

Antenna (PCS) R (1)

Microcell antenna (PCS) AR L (1)

Omnidirectional antenna, indoor antenna and ERARGERENE
other antennas (PCS) HpRE ()

Cable (M) BE (K)

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The nature of the Company's business determines that our business activities will not have
a significant impact on the environment and natural resources. However, the Company
will continue to enhance environmental protection to reduce any adverse effects on the

environment brought about by our business operations.

According to the environmental laws, regulations and relevant policies of the PRC,
when carrying out project construction, the Company will assess the potential pollution
arising during the construction and production process, the feasibility of governance
measures, whether production processes and products are in line with clean production
requirements, and the impact of the actual discharge of pollutants on surrounding
environment. An Environmental Impact Assessment Report (EIA report) will be submitted

to the environmental protection department in accordance with the laws and regulations.
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CONFLICT MINERALS

Since late 1990s, most of the minerals mining in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
and its neighboring countries and territories has contributed to local armed conflicts,
leading to long-term instability in the region and creating serious human rights and
environmental problems. Since 2012, the US Securities and Exchange Commission has
required all securities issuers whose production processes involve the use of four types of
minerals, namely tantalum, tin, tungsten and gold, to disclose their mineral sources. These
four types of conflict minerals are widely used in the information and communications
technology products manufacturing industry. The Company takes the initiative to refrain
from using minerals from conflict-affected and other high-risk areas and conducts surveys
on conflict minerals every year in cooperation with clients. The Company has signed
Conflict Minerals Agreements with a total of 236 related suppliers of which 45 were
newly-added in 2017, and has undertaken not to procure and use metal minerals from

conflict-affected or high-risk areas.

ESTABLISHMENT OF A TEAM OF EXCELLENCE

The Company is committed to creating a good working environment for its employees.
We attach great importance to the value of fine caliber, carry out eclectic selection of
high-quality talent and make good use of their talents. We mainly recruit through on-
campus and general recruitment. Our recruitment procedure is open, fair and reasonable.
The Company has established a serious of standardized human resources recruitment
and training programmes and systems, which has been strictly implemented. In 2016, the
Company set up the MOBI Academy to provide educational training and training functions
for all levels of the Company, providing valuable seminars to support and strengthen
the knowledge and skills of employees for the benefit of their career development and
promotion. The Company provides competitive remuneration and its working hours
policy complies with relevant national policies and regulations. We also provide various
types of paid leave, as required by the government, and do not allow any inequality or

discrimination in respect of job opportunities and other aspects.
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STAFF EMPLOYMENT

Employment Chart:

EE BN — Employment Situation

8 A\ — Total Number of Employees
S A —No. of Male

201 AE—No. of Female

Age Distribution Chart:

8 T & D #— Age Distribution of Employees
30 5% M LA R — Age 30 and below
31-40 55— Age 31-40

41-50 55— Age 41-50

51-60 55— Age 51-60

61 M BA_E— Age 61 and above

Education Structure Chart:

8 T2 /F 5 #— Education Structure of Employees
#H J2 LA — Junior high school and below
&/ E— High school or
technical secondary school
RE— College
A%} Bachelor's degree
HrFe A R PA_E— Master's degree and above

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company established an occupational health and safety management system which
was recognized by the OHSASI8001. The day-to-day operation of the Company follows
national laws and regulations and its health and safety policy and regulations ensure a safe
and healthy working environment to protect the physical and mental health and safety of

our employees.

[. Staff health examination: the Company provides staff health examinations on
an annual basis. Funded by the Company, all staff are entitled to physical health
checks at medical institutions where medical reports as well as health advice will be

provided.

2. Occupational Disease Inspections: The Company conducts occupational disease
inspections on annual basis for employees identified with potential exposure to
minimize the risks. In 2017, a total of 208 employees have been arranged for

occupational disease inspections.

3. Work injury data: In 2017, zero work-related fatalities, one minor work-related

injury with a loss of 987 working hours were recorded.

4. Health and safety manual: The Company has provided a health and safety pocket
manual for every employee to enable employees systematically understand the
Company's health and safety concepts, strategies, measures and safety guidelines.
Through illustrations and descriptions, employees can have better understanding of
the right and wrong for risk prevention, and can therefore reduce the occurrence

of health and safety accidents.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Company's MOBI Academy has a wealth of courses, including on corporate culture
and rules and regulations, new employee induction training courses, staff basic skills
training, on-the-job knowledge training, management skills and leadership, and other
aspects. The course lecturers include the Company's in-house instructors and external
lecturers from external schools and training institutions. In 2017, the Company completed
a total of 105,120 hours of training, with a total of 13,772 attendants, representing an

average of 7.63 training hours per person.

The Company also began to cooperate with a number of tertiary institutions. Through
the provision of pre-courses to send students to the Company as intems, we hope to
alleviate the disconnection between school leamning and the actual needs of enterprises

with common training of practical needs.

The Company has established an internal platform for career development and promotion
in operations, technology and management. Through a well-functioning mechanism,
employees are encouraged to exert their talents, expand their horizons and maintain
their vitality, ensuring that the development of our employees synchronizes with the

development of the Company.
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A series of training activities . BINRIES
() Training on traffic safety by Guangming Traffic Police Bureau: () HARERRBREEI

(2)  6SIGMA reading activity: (2) 6SIGMAEEEE :

A
s 12T, 2

e

EhkERERLXT
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(3)  Fire drills: (3) CHBES:

(4)  “Success Through Diligence and Perseverance Cup” knowledge contest for (4 EBLEIMHFEHTHINHEBRE
employees of MOBI:

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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(5)  Healthcare education for staff of General Union: () RISHIEBLEHE:

(6)  “Read Together” activity in Nanshan Library: (6) FILEEH|2HILE:

EhkERERLXT
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(7) MOBI “Hawk” induction training program for 2017 graduates: (7) EBL20I7TEESX4EET ABIZIIE
sl

(8)  First aid training in MOBI Xi'an: 8) EULARRASMIEIN

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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LABOR STANDARDS

The Company strictly abides with national laws and regulations, and we do not employ
child labor or use any forced labor in any of our businesses. In the recruitment of
employees, we will verify the age of candidates through an identity card verification system
to prevent noncompliance. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive
any reports of non-compliance. For details, please see “General Rules on Corporate Social

Responsibility of MOBI" above.

The Company provides five insurances (pension, medical, unemployment, work-related
injury and maternity) and one fund (housing provident fund) and other statutory social
welfare plans. In addition, the Company will also maintain corresponding commercial

insurance for employees.

The Company strictly complies with national laws and regulations in providing various

types of paid holidays.

STAFF ACTIVITIES: CULTURAL CAMPAIGNS AND RECREATIONAL
SPORTS

We pay great attention to humanistic care and team building, to exploring new cultural
and sports mechanisms for staff, and to striving to assist employees in achieving a worklife
balance, improving the working and living conditions of staff and to enhancing their

happiness and sense of belonging.

(1)  Forum for 2017 graduates:
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(2)  Event for the Teachers’ Day on 10 September 2017:

(3)  Celebration of 18th Anniversary of MOBI: (3) EBLIsSERFETEH :

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Special event for celebrating Christmas & New Year’s Day:

Youyou Coffee Shop Opening:
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(6)  Event for Father’s Day in MOBI Xi'an: The event was conducted to convey the
gratitude to fathers for their deep and steady love from the bottom of heart by
way of letters, in which employees were encouraged to voice the feelings on

exclusive postcards affixed with stamps so as to deliver the love to their fathers:

(6) BHBEZARXBRGIEH: XLEW
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BER AARMHBER  BHEERX
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(7)  Event for Mother’s Day in MOBI Xi'an: The event was conducted to convey the
gratitude and best wishes to mothers. Employees were encouraged to write
down words of gratitude and blessings for their mothers on notes which were

small but fully filled with love:
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(8)  “Listening to the Voices of Employees” Forum in MOBI Xi'an:

RiE  #HERERES

©® BUERADEBETLRIEHE

RESPONSIBLE SUPPLY CHAIN AND PRODUCT LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

Supply Chain Management

The Company is committed to promoting the integrity of business practices and positive
social responsibility, to guiding the suppliers’ code of conduct, and stipulating requirements
on corporate social responsibility of suppliers in relation to integrity, law-abiding, respect
for human rights, employment of labor, health and safety, environmental protection and
business ethics. We require each supplier to follow guidelines and the relevant laws and
regulations of their place of operation, especially key suppliers with long-term cooperation.
In 2017, we signed corporate social responsibility agreements with 236 suppliers with a
view to exerting influence on their environmental, social and governance requirements.

The types of agreements and undertakings signed are as follows:

“Agreement on Regulating Trading Environment and Behaviour”
“CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) Agreement”
“Supplier's Green Product (GP) Declaration”

Not on the purchase of “Conflict Minerals Policy” and Statement on not purchasing

Conflict Minerals
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Product Liability

The Company emphasizes the management of product liability. During the product
development stage, we carry out stringent implementation of product management,
not only to identify product features and performance requirements, but also to identify
the demand in environment, safety, reliability and other aspects for the products. We
strictly adhere to the industry and international standards to meet customer and legal
requirements in all respects. During production and delivery, in accordance with the
processes and standards developed by the Company, we carry out product checks and
tests at all stages from stocking, manufacturing to product delivery to ensure the safety
of products delivered. In 2017, the Company did not receive any product retumns due
to product health and safety problems and customer satisfaction reached 89.44%. The
Company has implemented an intellectual property policy, documenting procedures and
systems over the years to regulate the management and operation of the Company's
intellectual property rights. At the end of 2017, the Company had applied for 508 patents,
with 424 patents being granted. No patent infringement incidents occurred in 2017. The
Company also established a product recall system, and there were no product recalls due
to product quality and safety issues in 2017. In accordance with customer requirements,
the Company will sign business framework agreements on mutual cooperation with its
customers to ensure that confidential information of both sides will not be disclosed.
In 2017, the Company did not receive any complaints or litigation caused by leakage
of customer information and confidential data. The Company has established a
corresponding customer complaint and handling procedure to regulate the follow-up of
customer complaints and product returns or exchange; In addition, the Company will
maintain product liability insurance for customers’ products in response to their individual

requirements.
COMPLIANCE IN OPERATION

Compliance with laws and regulations

[t is the basic principle of the Company to carry out operational compliance by abiding
by business ethics and observing the laws and regulations of China and other countries
where the Group operates. The Company is committed to ethical management and
legal compliance in operations. We practice “zero tolerance” of any violation of laws and
regulations, and any breaches of business ethics. We carry out compliance in operations in
a proactive, effective and scientific manner, and are willing to work with global customers,

suppliers and other business partners to achieve sustainable development.

The business of the Company is mainly carried out by its subsidiaries in Mainland China,
and it is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The operations of the Company strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations of Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the
Reporting Period, to the best of our knowledge, there was no serious breach or non-

compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Anti-corruption

The Company actively takes measures against extortion and bribery or any form of
corruption. It has a zero-tolerance policy for corruption. The Company encourages all
employees to report any case of corruption and has established a formalized management
system as well as developed a formalized process for the daily business operations to
prevent the occurrence of corruption. The Company has set up an independent audit
department to strengthen the regular review of the operations of various centers and
departments of the Company in order to detect any non-compliance. In addition, the
Company engages independent auditors to conduct accounting and auditing of the
financial management system on an annual basis to prevent financial risks. During the
Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any litigation in relation to corruption

or bribery.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT AND VISIT AND GUIDANCE OF
OFFICIALS OF THE GOVERNMENT

Community Involvement

The Company has actively participated in various charity activities organized by

Community Party Branch, such as Party Branch charity activities and basketball games.

MOBI Party Branch Charity Activity:
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RiIR - HEREREE

2. MOBI Party Branch Basketball Game: 2. BHEXHERETH:

Visit and Guidance of Officials of the Government BREERRES
The Company gave its warmest welcome to the officials of the Government for their visit, ARBBUBLYFEMUAEREER - 8
research and guidance on the work of MOBI. B - EEELTE -
The visit in MOBI Shenzhen conducted by a delegation led by Academician I FERGEAEREBRFR L TR
Zheng Xiaojing, vice-chairman of China Association for Science and Technology: BLRIIEE
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RiIE - HERERE|SE

2. The research in MOBI Shenzhen conducted by a delegation led by You 2. REMEXERBRBEIZESE
Tiancheng, a Secretary of Tianjin Municipal Tianjin Port Free Trade Zone Work RO JC R B — 17 e e R LG SR YN B R

Committee:

3. The research of “Thousands of Students Practicing in Hundreds of Enterprises” 3. B TRRB[TAEBE L IHAHE
in MOBI Shenzhen conducted by Teachers Social Practice Team of BRBEAEW

Northwestern Polytechnical University:

L SN
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4.

RoHERERRE

The research in MOBI conducted by a delegation led by Kuang Bing, the deputy

secretary of the Shenzhen Guangming New District’s Party Working Committee

and the director of the Administration Commission:

The research in MOBI Shenzhen conducted by a delegation led by Chen Xiexin,

a Secretary of Wuhan Linkong Port Economic Development Zone:

|EFEFT RYNERZE

MOE| Anten Caehnolooimsl THENZHEN)Co.Ltd,
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang, aged 64, is an executive Director, the chairman of the board of Directors and
the chief executive officer of our Company. He is also a director, the chief executive
officer and legal representative of MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a director of
MOBI Xian and MOBI HK. Mr. Hu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002.
Mr. Hu was an engineer. Mr. Hu graduated from the Xian Infrastructure University (now
Xian University of Finance and Economics) majoring in radio communication in August
1981. During the period from 1972 to September 1981, Mr. Hu worked in the hydraulic
transmission and control department of the Northwest Industrial University. Mr. Hu
then served as chief of the planning and supply department at Shenzhen Zhongxingxin
Tongxun Shebei Co,, Ltd. for the period from 1992 to 1999. Mr. Hu joined our Group in
August 1999. Mr. Hu was a director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from
June 2002 to June 2007 and the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong
Shebei Co,, Ltd. from March 2000 to September 2007. He is a shareholder of Fangyi

Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Liao Dong, aged 47, Mr. Liao was appointed as an executive Director and chief
operating officer of the Company with effect from 26 March 2015, Mr. Liao graduated
from Chongging University with a doctoral degree in mechanical manufacturing and its
automation in 1999. Mr. Liao had worked at ZTE Kangxun Telecom Co,, Ltd. during the
period from July 1999 to February 2001 and at ZTE Corporation president” office during
the period from February 2001 to March 2003. Mr. Liao joined the Group in March 2003.
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Chen Zhaojun, aged 41, Mr. Chen was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 26 July, 2016. Mr. Chen is the executive vice-president and
chief financial officer of the Company, and is responsible for the financial management
of MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor's degree in economics
from Xiamen University in July 1999, and later obtained a master's degree in economics
from Xiamen University in July 2002. And later obtained a master's degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2014. Mr. Chen
became a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in 2015.
Mr. Chen worked as Senior Project Manager in the Investment Department of ZTE
Corporation from 2003 to 2004. Mr. Chen has been a Certified Public Accountant in the
PRC since 2006. Mr. Chen joined the Group in July 2004.

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian, aged 55, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Qu was appointed a Director on |9 December 2002.
Mr. Qu graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in June 1992 and he further obtained
the qualification as an accountant in the PRC in October 1994. From June 1993 to
April 2003, Mr. Qu was the chief of ZTE Corporation’s accounting and auditing centre
and the deputy chief of its financial centre. In April 2003, Mr. Qu was appointed as the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. and since
September 2007, has been the general manager of Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong
Shebei Co, Ltd. Mr. Qu joined our Group in December 2002. He is a shareholder of
Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li was appointed a
Director on | July 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1976 majoring
in computational Mathematics. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Li studied business economics
at Universitat Mannheim in Germany and pursued a doctoral degree at Universitat
Mannheim in 1988. From 1988 to 1995, Mr. Li worked as a research assistant in the
business economics department of Universitat Mannheim. During the period from March
1995 to September 1995, Mr. Li worked in Germany for Friatec Aktiengesellschaft, an
international manufacturing enterprise, and was designated to become the future managing
director for China. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Li first worked for KSB Aktiengesellschaft,
an international machinery manufacturing enterprise, as the assistant to the chairman of
the management board of KSB and then became the chief representative of its Beijing
Representative Office. During the period from 1998 to 2002, Mr. Li took the position of
regional director of Messer, an international chemical manufacturing enterprise, responsible
for its business development in Northern China as well as the operation, sales and profits
of its joint ventures and wholly owned companies in the Northemn China region. During
that period, Mr. Li also served as the general manager of Messer North China Industrial
Gas Co, Ltd. and the chairman to the board of Tianjin Messer Gas System Co,, Ltd. Since
2002, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Delintech Technology Co., Ltd, a
technical promotion service provider and sales service provider. Since 27 March 2011,
Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Zhong Biao Fang Yuan Anti-counterferting
Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. Li has valuable experience in international corporate management

and enterprise resources planning (ERP). Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2007.
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Zhang Han, aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009 and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent director of Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (stock code: PWRD), a Nasdaq listed
company, where Mr. Zhang has also served as a member of its audit committee since
July 2008. The responsibilities of such role include overseeing the accounting and financial
reporting processes as well as extemal and internal audit of the Company. Mr. Zhang
received his bachelor's degree in chemistry from the Peking University in 1985. He
later obtained an EMBA degree from the China Europe International Business School
in 2004. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Zhang worked at Beijing Fiber Reinforced Plastic
Research & Design Institute. Mr. Zhang was the Manager in the securities department
of Shenzhen Shekou China Merchants Co,, Ltd. from 1989 to 1994. Mr. Zhang was the
deputy manager at the finance department of China National Technical Import & Export
Corporation, and also the general manager of Shanghai CNTIC Investment Advisory
Co, Ltd. from 1994 to 1998. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the
general manager, investment director and fund manager at Penghua Fund Management
Co, Ltd, a fund management company in China. Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general
manager of Rongtong Fund Management Co,, Ltd, a fund management company in
China, from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Zhang also served as the general manager of Great Wall
Fund Management Co,, Ltd, a fund management company in China, from 2004 to 2005.
Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Share Capital Partners Ltd, a Chinese venture capital
firm. Mr. Zhang has built up his experience in conducting due diligence work in respect
of the financial performance, management and corporate government quality of various
companies and conducting financial analysis of listed companies throughout his various

tenures in the investment industry. Mr. Zhang joined our Group on 25 November 2009.
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Li Guinian, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 10
September 2013. Mr. Li graduated from the School of Chemistry Engineering of Hefei
University of Technology with a degree in Polymer Chemistry. In 2002, Mr Li obtained
a master degree in Business and Administration from Honolulu University of USA. He
received “Technological Progress Award in 1994" from Planning Commission of Anhui
Province for his study findings “Conditions for Economic Equilibrium of Nation and
Investment Strategies'( Bl & 4% 39 G 40 161 R R B ¥ 5 ). He received Fourth Prize
in “Anhui Technological Innovation™ in 1998 and Second Prize in “Bengbu Technological
Innovation” for his “Research Report About Industrial Structure Adjustment of Bengbu”
(FIEMEFLEBAEMERE). He received an "Award of Outstanding Article” by
Advanced Study Course for Enterpreneur of Peking University for his article “Discourse
on Harmony between Taoism and Managment of Modern Enterprises” (# 7% & K &
BEIBRMEERMNZE) composed in October 2012. Mr Li was awarded “Labour
Model” at municipal level in 2000-2003 by the municipal government of Bengabu and
“Luban Award for Construction of China” in respect of his leadership in the construction
of Bengbu Convention & Exhibition Centre (#Fi2& &M .0)) in 2005. Mr. Li has served
as the managing director and a general manager of Bengbu Investment Group Co,, Ltd (&
BIGEEEBRAF]). Currently, he is the managing director of SPP Investment Funds
Co, Ltd. (LRI EEREEEBR A, he is also a director of Capital Finance
Institute and College of Business of China University of Political Science and Law (% BIEX
FEREERSRIAZET - B2PT). Mr. Li has been an independent director of Creative
Distribution Automation Co,, Ltd. (3t REHHALE B E{L AR 19 B R 2 &) (Shenzhen
Stock Exchange Stock Code: 002350) since May 2014, an independent non-executive
director of Dalian Wanda Commerical Properties Co, Ltd. (K 8 & i 5 ¥ i & I% 7
BMR A7) (@ Company previously listed on HKSE) since 29 January 2016, and a non-
executive director of CCTV Yuntou Cuttural Tourism Investment Co,, Ltd. (FREE1&3C
EIREEZEREBR AT since July 2017. Mr. Li joined our Group on 10 September
2013.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

ESKEREEE

THE 645 RI3FIAI0BEZFT
REBUFNTES - FTEEREREGEIE
RENIRED FEE - FERAEWR2002
FREEEBRLASIREEEE£ELS
il o ZHRAERRKBERLE DG G
REEHRVELZBETE 194 FERIBES
BEE (BETEXEBEARHRARSE)E
ZRHEI9FREESNER . FEMH
FH 48 2002F 10 ARENHR KR
MEBRBEERRCXEENZS)VEILR
RECERRRMEMERRES - T
A7 2000-2003 FREEIETETE T A%
IR ) RN 2005 F R ERMERESEF
DEFBRRETI(RITRE) TEERTYH
BRESEARARNESRRELE B
FEEIFTEREEEARATERKIE &
ERBEBEAZERERAER  BHERE
E o FRER014F5 AREFIERBIEER
BEBLLROBEBRAR(—RERINBSFZ
S EMH AR RERIE002350)E L E
EH016F I A ARBETAESEDE
MERNDBRAT(—REEEBHIM L
ME AR BIFRITEE B2I17F7A
REFHEERULIREEFRERRAT]
FHITES - TEER0I3FIHAI0BMA
REE o

2

83



84

Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Shao Zhiguo, aged 54, was an executive Director of the Company from | April 2012
to 25 March 2015 and is the executive vice-president in research and development and
quality of the Company, MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Xian and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr.
Shao graduated from the Northwest Telecommunications Engineering College (now
Xidian University) with a bachelor degree in wireless equipment structure design in
1984. In 1998, Mr. Shao obtained a master degree in systematic engineering from Xi'an
Electronic Technology University. During the period of 1984 to 1999, Mr. Shao has held
such positions as engineer and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey
and Control Technology Institute. Mr. Shao has over |5 years experience of research and
development in the area of telecommunication measurement and control technology and
has received a second class award in Scientific Technology Advancement of the Ministry
of Machine Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Shao is a senior member of the Chinese
Institute of Electronics. Mr. Shao was a director of Kang Cheng from June 2002 to June
2007. Mr. Shao joined our Group in August 1999.

Kong Weitong, aged 54, is the executive vice-president of the Company, which
responsible for operation, manufacturing and supply chain. Mr. Kong obtained a bachelor's
degree in economics from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in August 1998. Mr. Kong worked
at the China Aerospace Corporation from 1982 to 2002 in the areas of accounting and
audit, where he was appointed as an accountant in 1992 and as a senior accountant in
1999. Mr. Kong became a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified

Public Accountants in 2006. Mr. Kong joined the Group in May 2002.

Chen Zhilong, aged 39, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading
the business of the research and development of antenna products. Mr. Chen Zhilong
graduated from School of Electronic Information, Wuhan University in 2003 with
a bachelor of science degree in wireless physics. He joined the Group in 2003 and
successively held the posts of electrical engineer, research and development project

manager, division head and the general manager of the antenna product business division.
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Ye Rong, aged 38, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading the
business of the research and development of RF products. Mr. Ye Rong graduated from
Xidian University in 2005 with a master of science degree in electromagnetic field and
microwave technology. He joined the Group in 2005 and successively held the posts of
electrical engineer, research and development project manager, division head and the

general manager of the radio-frequency product business division.

Han Jianrong, aged 57, is the executive vice-president of the Company, which responsible
for die casting, sheet metal fabrication and antennas production. Mr. Han graduated from
Northwestern Polytechnical University with a bachelor degree in foundry engineering in
1982. Mr. Han has over 20 years of experience in production. Mr. Han was appointed
as an engineer at Xi'an Aerospace Engine Corporation and Xi'an Microelectronics
Technology Research Institute in 1989 and 1993 respectively, and was awarded his
professional qualification as senior engineer by China Aerospace Corporation in [997. Mr.

Han joined the Group in February 2000.

Zhou Lingbo, aged 37, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading
the business of administration and personnel. Ms. Zhou Lingbo graduated from the
department of law of Nanjing University in 2004 with a LLB degree. She joined the Group
in 2004 and successively held the posts of director of the infrastructure office and director

of the president’s office.

An Liang, aged 38, is the vice-president of the Company responsible for leading the
business of the domestic operator market. Mr. An Liang graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University in 2002 with a bachelor’s degree in international finance. He
joined the Group in 2002 and successively held the posts of sales manager for various

provinces in China and the general manager of the northern marketing region in China.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lau Wing, aged 45, is our deputy financial officer, authorized representative and company
secretary. He is also the deputy financial officer of financial centre of MOBI Shenzhen.
He is responsible for our company secretarial, financial and accounting management and
internal audit affairs. Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor's degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1996, and later obtained a master's degree in business
administration (financial service) in 2005. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lau has over |8 years of experience in finance,
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters. Mr. Lau had held senior financial

positions in several listed companies. Mr. Lau joined our Group in May 201 1.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16
December 2002.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on |7 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries comprise the research, development, manufacture and sale of antenna system,
base station radio frequency subsystem and products of coverage extension solution.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during

the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 10 to 30 of this annual report. This

discussion forms part of this report of the directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2017 and the state of affairs of

the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages |12 to 212.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
31 May 2018.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a 5 years summary of the resufts and assets and liabilities of the Group

Report of the Directors

for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the audited financial

EEEHRE

MBERHRE
TEBAARERATREMBRFRENEESR
BEMABR REBRERREEGVHR

statements. XKoo
Year ended 3| December
BZNA3HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 20164 20154 20144 2013F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT ARETRT ARBTIT AR®ETR
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 1,422,441 1,459,704 1,585,788 1,648,466 888,226
Profit(loss) before taxation Bt A (E518) (60,980) 71956 98,560 107,497 23,761
Taxation IR 12,471 (6,107) (8,904) 9.921) (4,700)
Profit(loss) for the year FANE(ER) (48,509) 65,849 89,656 97,576 19,06
Profit(loss) and the total ARAEE ARIGH (48,509) 65,849 89,656 97,576 19,061
comprehensive income FEMBEER) &
(expenses) for the year e ONGE LS
attributable to owners
of the Company
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EBERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE 540,782 488,249 476,873 481,154 370,467
Current assets MENEE 1,807,204 1,702,773 1,769,030 1,904,525 1,514,800
Current liabilities mEBE (1,157,942) (859,794) (956909)  (1,253374) (844,690)
Non-current liabilities EnRBEE (12,797) (81,849) (84,493) (7384) (8346)
Net assets BEFR 1,177,247 1,249,379 1,204,501 124921 1,032,231
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M - BMERRE
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year FN- AKENX  BERRENEZHHE

BN BERRMEL 13

are set out in note |3 to the financial statements.

EhkERERLXT
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

On 13 January 2010, 18,443,000 over-allotment shares of USD0.00000| each of the
Company at price of HKD3.38 per share were issued pursuant to the underwriting
agreement of the IPO of the Company. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on |
June 2010, a bonus issue of 72,446,099 shares of USD0.00000| each of the Company is
issued to the persons whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on | June 2010 on the basis of one share for every ten shares held

on | June 2010. These new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all aspect.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year

are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements, respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the share option scheme of the Company as set out on pages 93 to 96, no

equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to RMB514.3 million. This amount includes the Company's share premium account
of RMB462.7 million at 31 December 2017, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, revenue attributed to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 89.5% of the total revenue for the year and revenue attributed to the

largest customer accounted for 46.1%.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year is less than 22.4%.

The Directors Interests in a major customer and suppliers are set out in the paragraph
headed "Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts” on

page 99 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Liao Dong
Chen Zhaojun

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian

Independent non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Li Guinian

Under the provisions of the Articles, all of the Directors are subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles, Mr. Li Tianshu and Zhang Han, and Mr.
Li Guinian, independent non-executive Directors, will retire and, being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board still considers

each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent from the Company.

ELERERLA
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 79 to 86 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Except for Mr. Liao Dong, an executive Director, has entered into a service agreement
with our Company commencing from 26 March 2015 for a term of three years, and Mr.
Chen Zhaojun, an executive Director has entered into a service agreement with our
Company commencing from 26 July 2016 for a term of three years, each of the executive
Director and non-executive Director has entered into a service agreement with our

Company commencing from |7 December 2015 for a term of three years, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Han and Mr. Li Guinian
has entered into a letter of appointment with our Company for a term of three years
commencing from 17 December 2015 and 10 September 2016 respectively (except for
Mr. Li Tianshu whose engagement with us commenced on | July 2007) and renewable by

mutual agreement on annual basis.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in

relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage

for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments are reviewed by Remuneration Committee with reference to

Directors' duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME g g
Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 25 to the financial KRR BERESSFBANTBEREN T

statements. 250

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share option scheme during TREERARBREAEFANE

the year:
Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asat end
Name Option type Date of gant  BR{TEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
£ FREEH  RA4EH  (ARW) T ENHATE ERiRd Rl FAEOR  FREROR
Directors:
g3
Hu Xiang 20150ptionA 2632015 147 142016 - 2532025 450000 — — — 450,000
] DISFEREA
20150ptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 450,000 - - - 450,000
0I5 5ERMES
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 600000 - - - 600000
WVISFEREC
Lizo Dong 0130ption A 2312203 109 162015 -23.122023 300000 — — — 300000
ER DIFEREA
013CptionB 2312203 109 142016 - 23.122023 300000 — — — 300000
13FERED
0130ptionC 2312203 109 [4-2017 - 23.122023 400,000 - - - 400,000
VIFEREC
20150ptionA 2632015 147 142016 - 25-3.2025 510000 — — — 510000
DISFEREA
0150ptionB 2632005 147 142017 - 2532025 510,000 — — — 510000
I5FERED
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 680000 - - - 680000
WISFEREC

ELERERLA
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Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asatend
Name Option type Date of gant  BR{TEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
£ FREEH  RA4EH  (ARW) T ENHATE ERiRd R FREAR  FREAGE
ChenZhaojun ~ 20130ption A 23122013 109 162015-22.122023 300000 — — - 300000
RkE DI3EEREA
0130ptionB 23122013 109 142016 - 22122023 300000 — — — 300000
I35ERES
0130ptionC 2312203 109 142017 - 22122023 400,000 - - - 400,000
VIFEREC
2015C0ption A 2632015 147 142016 - 2532025 330000 — — - 330000
DISFEREA
2015CptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 330000 — — - 330000
I5FERED
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 440,000 - - - 440,000
WISFEREC
Qu Degian 0130ptionA 2312203 109 6201522122023 150000 - - - 150000
Ef% VIIFEREA
013C0ptionB 2312203 109 142016 - 22122023 150000 — — - 150000
I3FERES
0130ptionC 2312203 109 142017 - 22122023 200,000 — — — 200000
I13FEREC
2015C0ption A 2632015 147 142016 -253-2025 150000 — — - 150000
DISFEREA
2015CptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 150000 — — - 150000
I5FERED
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 200,000 - - - 200000
WISFEREC
Sub-totat: 7300000 - - - 7300000
NGt

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asat end
Name Option type Date of gant  BR{TEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
i FREER  R4E®  (AR®) q1TEHE ENHATE ERid Fri#E  FREAE  FREAGRE
Other participants:
Hfpg8E
Participants 2005 Option 3182005 06655 3182006 - 3082015 — — — — —
puE 2005 FERfE
Participants 0130ptionA 2312203 109 [62015- 22122023 - - - - -
28% DI3EEREA
013CptionB 2312203 109 142016 - 22122023 — — — — -
I3RS
0130ptionC 2312203 109 142017 - 22122023 - - - - -
V3FEREC
Participants 20150ption A 2632015 147 142016 - 2532025 - - - - -
baE DISFEREA
20150ptionB 2632015 147 142017 - 2532025 - - - - -
0I55ERiE
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 - 2532025 - - - - -
WISFEREC
Sub-total: — — — — —
NGt

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Exercise price Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
per share (RMB) as at beginning during during during asatend
Name Option type Date of gant  BR{TEE Exercisable period of the year the year the year the year of the year
4 BRESN  RHEH  (ARM) qTEHE ENMATTE ERiRd Rl FREAR  ERHAGRE
Other employees:
HfbER -
Employees 013CptionA 2312203 109 [62015- 22122023 9,356,000 — (546,000) (675000) 8,135,000
& DIIFEREA
013CptionB 2312203 109 142016 - 22122023 9,942,000 — (546,000) (697000) 8,699,000
13 ERED
0130ptionC 2312203 109 [42017-22.122023 13,256,000 - (464,000) (720000) 12072000
0I3FEREC
Employees 2015CptionA 2632015 147 142016 -25.3.2025 7560000 — (423000) - 7137000
& ISFRREA
20150ptionB 2632015 147 1420172532025 7560000 - (423000) - 7137000
0I5 5ERMES
20150ptionC 2632015 147 142018 -25.3.2025 10,080,000 — (564000) - 9516000
2015 FERHEC
Sub-totat 57,754,000 — (2,966,000) (2,092000) 52696000
it
Total: 65,054,000 — (2,966,000) (2,092000) 59,996,000
i

The weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates on which the HEEREETEHEA - RO NETY
options were exercised was HK$1.53. WHERISIETT -

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the chief
executive or their associates in the share capital, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™) ) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positons which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code"), were as follows:

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

EEHESRITBRAERRKRA - 1264
BROREFNEZRAXR

R217F 128318 BF - S RTHAE
HEENHEARRRBALEBEEZECE
ERBSFRBEGRI(TERRRERAE
XVED) B R - HERG REFRHEERE
BEERBEEFIEXVHETRESHEAM
GARRBRBR AN EZ AR (BERE
BH B RAIEERR RER R IOX
B HREER LPERIIE 2GR ECHE
RARRFENECMANEZRAR
BELTETAESETEFR ST ES
AI([1R2E<P A ]) B g AR B KRB A FTR
mIOKEWT ¢

Ordinary shares of the Company: AREEER

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares and issued capital

Number of underlying shares HIEARAT

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares underlying shares R4 % 2RT

EEps BEME BHEE HERABE MEROEE BANEDL

Hu Xiang Personal 25,540,500 1,500,000 27,040,500 3.29%
A fEA Long Position Long Position Long Position
58 58 58

Liao Dong Personal 12,000,000 2,700,000 14,700,000 1.79%
BR fEA Long Position Long Position Long Position
&8 58 =8

Chen Zhaojun Personal 1,019,000 2,100,000 3,119,000 0.38%
BRIKE EPN Long Position Long Position Long Position
RE kB =9

Qu Degian Personal — 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.12%
JE1ER fEA Long Position Long Position

59
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Share options of the Company:

Details of the Directors interests in share options of the Company are set out in the

Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had registered any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
SFO), or which as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company as at 3|
December 2017, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executives of the Company
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of the Company: RAREBER

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares and issued capital

Name of Substantial Number of underlying shares HEERT

Shareholder Nature of Interest Number of shares underlying shares B4R =% ¢6)

IBREEH BEME RHABE HERGHE BERGBE  BRANEIH

Fangyi Collaboration Beneficial owner 230,607,300 — 230,607,300 28.10%
Ho\dings Limited EnBBA Long Position Long Position
EERBRA =9} R

Morning Star Beneficial owner 88,280,994 — 88,280,994 10.76%
Resources Limited BB A Long Position Long Position
9= =3

Li Xiaoyong Beneficial owner 48,155,000 — 48,155,000 5.87%
FNE BEREAAN Long Position Long Position
=9 =9

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2017, Directors' interests in a major customer were as follows:

ZTE Corporation (“ZTE")

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian, Directors of the Company, are members of the 39

EERRG ZYREHNZERE

=
HEWT7TENANBR EXEXFPHNE

EENhHEEMT -

EGEAR G AR AR (T EER )

shareholders (“Beneficial Owners") of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Ltd. (“Fangyi”),

a substantial shareholder of the Company.

. The Beneficial Owners had an indirect equity interest of approximately 16.6% in

ZTE, the largest customer of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017,

through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Zhongxing Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd.

(“Shenzhen Weixiantong). Shenzhen Weixiantong owns 49% shareholding interest

in Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxin”), which in

turn had approximately 33.87% shareholding interest in ZTE.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian together held approximately 4.1% shareholding interests

in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Therefore, they have indirect shareholding interests in

ZTE through their shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
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As at 31 December 2017, Directors' interests in major suppliers were as follows:

Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co., Ltd. (“Kang Cheng")

. Kang Cheng is a supplier accounted for 6.5% purchases of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Kang Cheng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 5%

shareholder of Kang Cheng

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Kang Cheng through their shareholding interests in

Shenzhen Weixiantong.
Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shenglongfeng”)

. Hu Xiang, Director of the Company, has directly maintained approximately 2.0%
equity interest in Shenglongfeng, a supplier accounted for 0.05% purchases of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Shenglongfeng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 20%

shareholder of Shenglongfeng.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Shenglongfeng through their shareholding interests

in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
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Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhongxingxindi") which former name as
Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd.

. The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Zhongxingxindi, a
supplier accounted for 1.6% purchases of the Group for the year ended 3|
December 2017, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen
Weixiantong was a 34.3% shareholder of Zhongxingxindi. Shenzhen Weixiantong
owned 49% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxin, which in turn had a 70%

shareholding interest in Zhongxingxindi.

. Hu Xiang and Qu Degian as members of the Beneficial Owners, therefore, have
indirect shareholding interests in Zhongxingxindi through their shareholding

interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company's or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or its connected entities had a material
interest (whether directly or indirectly) subsisting at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Detalils of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group are set out
in note 32 to the financial statements which did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the percentage of shares of the Company in
public hands is in compliance with the prescribed level of the minimum public float as set

out in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has set up an audit committee with written terms of reference. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors and reports to the

Board of Directors.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company, who are of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards and legal requirements,

and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

Hu Xiang
Chairman

22 March 2018

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MOBI Development Co,, Ltd.
(the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out
on pages |12 to 212, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code™), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB S

HRERER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most FAREZEEABRMNEEHE T XA
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. HGAERRPFREENSH KRS
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial BREECAMERREENSEEENIE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a KER  MIAeRtESEREEERER -

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RARELRNMEEERERER

Valuation of inventories

FEfMGE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the use of judgment and estimates by the

management in estimating the allowance for inventories.

In determining the allowance of inventories, the
management considers the aging analysis, technology
development of the industry, net realisable value for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in operation and subsequent sales or

usage.

BARFEHERN L SEREZER RARERE
Bt 17 SR AR 8 PR A K kst

EEEEERES  EREERTENEEER AN
ABIERE  THES BENERELEBNRE
AT S A R RFE -

Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventories included:

. Understanding how the management estimates the allowance of obsolete

and slow-moving inventories items;

. Obtaining the inventory aging analysis and checking its classification by age,

on a sample basis, to related documents;

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the allowance of obsolete and/or slow-
moving inventories identified by the management with reference to the
aging analysis of inventories, market information, subsequent sales and

usage of inventories;
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEERER BMRECRNTEEERELER

Valuation of inventories

RFEME

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial . Checking on correctness of the inventory aging analysis and subsequent

statements, as at 3| December 2017, the carrying
amount of inventory was RMB413,384,000, net of the
write down of inventories of RMB69,005,000.

MG ETBHRRMTISHEE - R2017F 12831 .
H ZEREEABARKE4133840007  HIBRFE
T A R 69,005,000 7T ©

sales or usage of inventories on a sample basis to related documents;

Checking on the net realisable value of inventories to the subsequent

selling prices on sample basis;

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the allowance estimation by the
management by comparing historical allowance made to the actual selling

prices and actual loss incurred; and

Assessing the reasonableness of reversal of allowance for inventories
previously recognised by testing the receipts from sales of respective

inventories, on a sample basis.

UHEEEREFENKE DTN EREENREHESEARIE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMRECRNTEEERELER

Allowance for doubtful debts

RERE

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivable balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the judgment involved in the

determining the allowance for doubtful debts.

In determining the allowance for doubtful debts, the
management considers the credit history including
default or delay in settlements, subsequent settlements,
aging analysis of the trade receivables and financial

position of debtors.

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 3| December 2017, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is RMB485,929,000, net of
the allowance for doubtful debts of RMBI 1,660,000.

BB LESRUFEN AR RERELE
B RRREHERGAMBRANER Y  ULE
EREB BRI S -

EBEREREN  EEEZEIEMLE  BRE
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*/—\EM’@&%WE‘IW%T&EE'EAzowfﬁlem
B SREWHENREEAS AR 485929000
T B RIREE AR 11,660,0007T ©

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the appropriateness of the

management's assessment of recoverability of trade receivables included:

. Understanding how the allowance for doubtful debts being estimated by

the Group's management;

. Assessing the reasonableness of allowance for doubtful debts assessed
by the management with reference to the credit history including default
or delay in payments, subsequent settlements, aging analysis of the trade

receivables and publicly available financial information of debtors;

. Testing the accuracy of the aging analysis and subsequent settlements of
the trade receivables, on a sample basis, to the supporting documents;

and

. Evaluating the historical accuracy of the allowance estimation by the
management by comparing historical allowance made to the actual
settlements and actual loss incurred and tracing the actual settlements, on

a sample basis, to the supporting documents.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility forwards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Wu

Ka Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GERaRkEMEERERR

For the year ended 3| December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

2017 2016
20175 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

(=3 ARBT ARETT

Revenue WA 5 1,422,441 1,459,704
Cost of sales HE R (1,176,352) (1,106,232)
Gross profit EM 246,089 353,472
Other income and expenses HAKA R FE 6 32,374 27742
Research and development costs T EE R AR (106,747) (89,684)
Distribution and selling expenses DR EERX (91,707) (92,989)
Administrative expenses TR (126,038) (113,194)
Finance costs BT TSR AR 7 (14,568) (13,099)
Share of results of associates YN (383) (292)
(Loss)profit before taxation BAT(&E ) FIE (60,980) 71956
Taxation 18 8 12,471 (6,107)

(Loss)profit and the total comprehensive (expense) AARHEE ABENEE (FHR)
income for the year attributable to owners of MBER2EHFEX)WARE

the Company 9 (48,509) 65,849
(Loss)earnings per share BR(EE)BR
~ basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARED) 12 (5.92) 8.04
— diluted (RMB cents) - BE(ARED) 12 (5.92) 803
.1 1 2 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At 31 December 2017
#2017F12A318

2017 2016
2017 20165
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E ARMTF T ARBTFT
Non-current Assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment W - R R 13 412,760 387,448
Deposits for purchase of plant and equipment BEMFELREEE RS 10,029 8,830
Prepaid lease payments BREERIE 14 26,758 27426
Deferred tax assets ERHIBEE I5 42,858 29,961
Intangible assets BVEE 16 46,352 34,376
Interests in associates REE AR ER |7 2,025 208
540,782 488,249

Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 413,384 340,202
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E e AR X 19 1,030,477 943918
Income tax recoverable B ATEH 5,553 1,896
Prepaid lease payments ENEERIE 14 668 668
Pledged bank balances EHEMRITAER 20 166,658 124,612
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIAS 20 190,464 291,477
1,807,204 1,702,773

Current Liabilities nREAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMREMERK 21 868,300 663,897
Dividend payable FERTAR B 726 770
Tax payable eI — 4,240
Bank borrowings RITIER 2 287,464 186,267
Deferred income BIEHA 23 1,452 4,620
1,157,942 859,794
Net Current Assets REBEEFHE 649,262 842,979
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERRBEE 1,190,044 1331228
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FE BB AR R ;K

At 31 December 2017
R2017%12 A31

2017 2016
20175 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

(=3 ARBT ARETT

Non-current Liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEN 22 = 70,000
Deferred income EEBA 23 12,797 11,849
12,797 81,849
Net Assets EEFE 1,177,247 249,379

Capital and Reserves B K &
Share capital R 24 6 6
Reserves 1 1,177,241 1249373
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KAREREAEGES 1,177,247 1,249,379

The consolidated financial statements on pages |12 to 212 were approved and authorised FINEINENGEEVBRERELESTS

for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: F20184F3 B 22 B AEMKMETE - WHIA
TEERERE
Hu Xiang Liao Dong
ik BR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
% %
-1 1 4 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERRBBRE

For the year ended 3| December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

Statutory Share
Enterprise surplus option
expansion reserve reserve
Share Share fund fund Special (note 25) Retained
capital premium LERR EERH reserve  FERIERE earnings Total
BE ROEE -5 NEE BRRE (WE5) REEN L h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETRT ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARBTR AR%T:R
At | January 2016 201651 A18 6 516232 3034 56611 2999 18660 606959 1,204,501
Transfer BE — — — 7,133 — — (7133) —
Recognition of equity-settled BREREE RN R
share based payment EROAH — - — — — 7,101 — 7,101
Profit and the total comprehensive FEMBERZERNEE
income for the year — — — — — — 65,849 65,849
Dividend paid (note |1) BERRE (M) — (28,072) — — — — - (28072)
At 31 December 2016 R2016512A31H 6 488,160 3034 63,744 2999 25761 665,675 1,249,379
Exercise of share options TR — 3266 — — — (808) — 2458
Recognition of equity-settled BRARREEURN A
share based payment ERMOMT — — — — — 2649 — 2649
Loss and the total comprehensive EEFBREZARNAE
expense for the year — — — — — — (48,509) (48,509)
Dividend paid (note |1) ERRE 1) — (28442) — — — — — (28442)
Shares repurchased (note 24) FREIR 1 (Pi7E24) — (288) — — — — — (288)
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31 8 6 462,696 3034 63,744 2999 27,602 617,166 1177247
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERRBBRE

For the year ended 3| December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in
the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are required
to maintain two statutory reserves, being an enterprise expansion fund and a statutory
surplus reserve fund which are non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are
made out of net profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by their respective
boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up
their prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of
capitalisation issue. The enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base

of the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision), the share premium of
the Company may be applied for redemption or purchase of any shares of the Company,
payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, payment of its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. During the year ended 3|

December 2017 and 2016, dividends were funded out of its share premium.

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid-in capital of & Fb K &% 3 fi
ORI BBR A FMOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd. (“MOBI Shenzhen”),
a subsidiary of the Company, and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in connection with the acquisition of MOBI Shenzhen. MOBI Shenzhen was acquired
pursuant to the group restructuring completed on |9 December 2002, at which time
the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire

equity interest in MOBI Shenzhen.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Consdlidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEHERERR

For the year ended 3| December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

2017 2016
2017 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES g
(Loss) profit before taxation FiAT (&8 ) F)E (60,980) 71956
Adjustments for: FATIEBEELAE
Recognition of equity-settled share based payment MR AR A E AR BEHEE)
(BN 2,649 7,101
Depreciation and amortisation & K i 45,235 47421
Allowance for inventories FERE 55,228 5,700
Government grants related to assets HEEMRBNBNEDS (4,620) (4,622)
Interest income from bank deposits RITERFMEHA (4,539) (4,360)
Release of prepaid lease payments RN HERE 668 668
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERXENER 1,138 1,584
Allowance for (reversal of allowance for) doubtful debts AR et (Bm) 7,927 (106)
Finance costs B ISACAR 14,568 13,099
Share of results of associates NI 383 292
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital ~ Rt ZE& ©E AN
KERTRE 57,657 138,733
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEGEm L (128,410) 17319
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 RE M YRR (5 0) R (94,486) 35313
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNERFIZMORD) 189,935 (1'11,877)
Cash generated from operations rEmEHRS 24,696 79,488
Taxation paid BENHIE (8,323) (18,736)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KERYELRT TR 16,373 60,752

ELERERLA
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Consdlidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERTREB®MRK

For the year ended 3| December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

2017 2016
2017 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES &ﬁ}ﬁb
Interest income from bank deposits TERHAEBA 4,539 4,360
Government grant related to assets Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁ SR RE© 2,400 2,000
Development costs paid [RENEIEIDEN (18,248) (13,657)
Placement of pledged bank balances FEEEMRTE (369,985) (327939)
Withdrawal on pledged bank balances BiEE EARITA 327,939 370,163
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BB &R (55,990) (26,275)
Deposits paid for purchase of plant and equipment REERE LRE MRS (5,553) (16,484)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - WFE KRB AEHE 9,399 2,459
Capital contribution to associates [IHEE A E A (2,200) (500)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RELBAAREFR (107,699) (5.873)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEY
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of share options 1718 B JR #E 1T AR {0 FT 1S 2R 2,458 —
Repurchase of shares Rzt B ol (288)
Dividends paid ERRE (28,486) (27,985)
New bank borrowings raised FIGIRITIE 285,172 211,428
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITIER (253,975) (192,900)
Interest paid BEAAFLE (14,568) (13,099)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHMAREFE (9,687) (22,556)
NET (DECREASF) INCREASE IN CASH AND RekBReZEBWHECKD)E M
CASH EQUIVALENTS (101,013) 32,323
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT | JANUARY RIAIBNRERA2EEY 291,477 259,154
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 3| DECEMBER, R 12 A31 BB R & KRB S ZEY
represented by bank balances and cash (AMRITHERRIRE) 190,464 291,477

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

MOBI Development Co., Ltd. (the "Company") is a public limited company
incorporated in the Cayman Island and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on |7 December 2009. The address
of its registered office is Maples Corporate Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KYI-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is 7 Langshan First Road Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company and its principal subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group") are

production and sale of antennas and radio frequency subsystems.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the

current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7
BRBETERE 7R (EBITAX)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BB EAE 12K (BFTAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 12
BEEMBHRELERE 125 (BFTA)

REXHME

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to the HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

Disclosure Initiative

BERMBRERER

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

—REH
BLERERAR(ARRA])RER
SRBEMKINARBERAR  H
BHR209F12BI7TEERER A
RPMERAB(BRA]) £ A
af % 2 B2 #9331k 73 Maples Corporate
Services Limited P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KYI-1104,
Cayman lIslands * EF B %M E A+
BERERYITE LR ZERL—
BR75% -

RAaPBRRAARBETAREDZ
5 ARBRRARAIRERZFAA
MRS o

ARAEEFRARIAZENNEE
EABREENKBERBRBRES A
FEG -

FE PR3 5T B ARAE 7T & 78 B 35 3R
HFEA(EFBMBREER )
AEERFERZEBUBREER
(EHEN

RAFE  AEEERRAREALS
ARG EEGMAE IBMANT
NEBHBFRELEANETA -

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
RAEREERIELCHEEE

As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
12014 F £ 2016 FEMFEBEN T D

RIAESN  RAFEERAEREMH
ERABRIAN  BAKEAFER
BEFEZHBRERMA Kt
FHREVBBRRMBZIKELEEX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe)

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

% wR M

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year.
The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial assets

were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i) changes
from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is
provided in note 33. Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments,
the Group has not disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 33, the application of these amendments has

had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ERHFHITRKETERBMER

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

SEA(EBMBHEELER )

(Contd) (&)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective BHEGEERERMZHITIREEBTZ
EEUBRE R

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have KREEWEBEZERM N2 EMBEN

been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9
BRARGRERAE IR
HKFRS 15

BAMBHELERE 155

HKFRS 16
BERARBMEEAE 65
HKFRS 17

BEEMBHMELERNE 175

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

EL(BRMBREREZES) —2BE0R
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
BE(BRMBHRERERZES) REE R
Amendments to HKFRS 2

BERMBHMELERE 2R EFTAR)

Amendments to HKFRS 4

BERMBREEAE4REFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 9
BRI BmEERFE IR EEFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEEMBRELERE 0K RBEGERE 285K (EFTAR)
Amendments to HKAS 28

BEGHERIF 285 (BFTAK)

Amendments to HKAS 28

BREGERIE 285 (BFTA)

REBZHET RBETT 2 BRI R

g -

Financial Instruments'
TRIA!
Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments'
REEFPERMKRANRBBER
Leases’
HE?
Insurance Contracts*
RBRAAK
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration'
INEZH RIBENRE
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?
PS50 B 2 ) T REE 1 2
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions'
U BERN KRR ZODBNE
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'
BEBUBHRSENE4RRRAEA—
HEANEEMBREEAFIREMTA
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation?
BB HENRATER L
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?
REERHEBEIALECRCANEELEITE®
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures?
REE AR A EERNRER?
As part of the Annual Improvements to HKRFSs 2014-2016 Cycle!
ERMBREER2014FE 2016 FERAFEZCEN T

ELERERLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ERHFHITRKETERBMER

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 40
BEGHERIF 405 (BFTAK)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BEAEMBHRELER (BFTA)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019

3
4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 202 |

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement

of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and impairment

requirements for financial assets.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

SEA(EBMBHEELER )
(%)
ERMENRERZHTREBETZ
BERMBHREEA(E)

Transfers of Investment Property’

REMESE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?
BBMBREER 2015552017 FEPNHFEBUE?

20184 | A | B2 1% FItRH)F E 5
R

2 R2019% | A I Bz ERIAHFEE
L

’ RAFHETE B Bk 2 14 B ia 1) F /& A
I

‘ 2021 F | A | B2 % FIIRE)F E 5
R

EBBREEREH TR
BAMBREENEIRSIAHSHE
E-cBafE —REPgEZS
BRAEZHRTREREENRE
E5ko
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ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FERAFITRELEBITEBUBER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) LA ([BEBHEHRESER])
(Contd) (&
BEMEMRERZHTREBITZ
EBMBHREEN(E)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont d) BB EEREIR SR T A (E)
HAREGHNE BN BRELERE9

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"). All other
financial assets are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive

income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont d)

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an

expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model

under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The

expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit

losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no

longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies as at 31

December 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate the following potential

impact on the initial application of HKFRS 9.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont d)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment

provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at | January 2018 would be
increased as compared to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on trade and other
receivables. Such further impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would reduce the opening retained earnings and increase the deferred tax assets at

| January 2018,

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe)

% wR M

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities
to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
IS5 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS || Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it

becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS |5 is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to

revenue recognition:

. Step I Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract.

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont d)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to the
identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as

well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
may result in more disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of HKFRS |5 will have a material impact on the

timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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For year ended 31 December 2017
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS |7 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases

by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash

flows by the Group.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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For year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Contd)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related finance
lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these assets depending on whether the
Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which

the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a

lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [6.

As at 3| December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB7,639,000 as disclosed in note 26. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value

or short-term leases.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Contd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Contd)

In addition, the Group currently considers received refundable rental deposits paid
of RMB450,000 and refundable rental deposits received of RMB434,000 as rights
and obligations under leases to which HKAS |7 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are considered
as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would
be included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable

rental deposits received would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in changes in

measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company consider that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs is unlikely to have a material

impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis at the end of reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36

Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level |,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Basis of consolidation (Cont d)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions

of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net assets of
the associates other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the

date on which the investee becomes an associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Investments in associates (Cont d)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary
to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount

of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate

that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is reduced for estimated customers returns, rebates, and other similar

allowance.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Revenue from the sale of goods, including sale of antenna system, base station
RF subsystem and coverage extensive solution, is recognised when the goods are

delivered and titles have passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life

of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is

described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy. Such construction in progress are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other

property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than
construction in progress less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the

effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Property, plant and equipment (Cont @)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element at initial

recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building elements, the entire

property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BE017E12 A3 BILER

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Intangible assets

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities (or from
the development phase of an intemal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the

following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be

available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible

asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Intangible assets (Cont d)

Internally-generated intangible assets-research and development expenditure (Contd)
The amount initially recognised for intemally-generated intangible asset is the sum
of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interally-generated intangible assets are reported

at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Intangible assets (Cont d)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (Contd)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs

of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes

a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial

assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within

the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

FTESHBR#E)

ERMITA
TREENEHBEEEEERAR
BERIESRNTNRER -

cREERERABBNSRAFE
E-BEEFTAURBAERTEREE
FEBABOIZIHA  RIRER
BEtAStEBEELSRAGB(NE
BB A FER

THEE
AEENEREERERRENE
FenENERSREENMEERE
WL ROSERANETE - 2RE
ENMAERREERGEERBRARE
LR AREBERARRET SR
Al BRI TR RERARKEE
MEREERE -

BERFEx
ERMEERFAE-BEEKIAND
BN R AR EWA S T AERE
RE % - BERMEEGEBIAR
BEFFFHIBEBHN(RER)
B s AR RAT IR € (RERE R
FERNBARED  ZFERARE
BRRIE - XBRAREAM GBS ITE
R E D ) EHTIR E 8RR
AREFEMME

BB TANMBRARERMREE

7
e

141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank balances
and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on

loan and receivables below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for

short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of loan and receivables

Loan and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Loan and receivables are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of

the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loan and receivables (Cont'd)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30-240 days

(2016: 30-240 days), observable changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present

value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written

off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe)

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

% wR M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loan and receivables (Cont'd)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,

sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, dividend payable and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share option scheme

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar

services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at the grant
date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity

(share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the

revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

retained eamings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Taxation (Cont'd)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes which are classified as
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and

salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by
the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
Any changes in the liabilities carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest
and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that

another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year.

Write down of inventories

The Group writes down inventories based on an assessment of the net realisable
value of inventories. Allowance is applied to inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than the cost of
inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories requires the use of judgment
and estimates on the conditions and usefulness of the inventories. The management
may consider the aging analysis, technology development of the industry, net
realisable value for obsolete and slow-moving inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in operation and subsequent sales or usage. Where the actual
outcome or expectation of the net realisable value of inventories is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write-down for inventories in the period in which such estimate has changed.
The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December 2017 was RMB4 13,384,000,
net of write down of RMB69,005,000 (2016: RMB340,202,000 (net of write down
of RMB19,768,000)).
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (Contd)

Estimated allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade receivables. Allowance is applied to trade receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful receivables requires the management's
judgment and estimation of future cash flows. The management may consider
the credit history including default or delay in settlement, subsequent settlements,
ageing analysis of the trade receivables and financial position of debtors. Where the
actual outcome or expectation of the recoverability of trade receivables is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and allowance for doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate
has changed. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was RMB485,929,000 (net of allowance of RMBI 1,660,000) (2016: carrying amount
of RMB454,648,000 (net of allowance of RMB5,628,000)).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2017, a deferred tax asset of RMB17,994,000 (2016:
RMB6,622,000) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of RMB10,323,000 (2016: RMB4,270,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material
reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further

recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM have been

aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Antenna system - manufacture and sale of antenna system and related products

Base station RF subsystem - manufacture and sale of base station RF subsystem and

related products

Coverage extension solution - manufacture and sale of a wide array of coverage

products.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) WARDEER (EZ)
Information of segment revenues and segment results EBRIBUARDBEENER
2017 2016
2017 5 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Segment revenues 2 EUA
Antenna system PN E L 754,791 882,650
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 592,806 482,847
Coverage extension solution BELMAE 74,844 94,207
1,422,441 1,459,704
Segment results SEEE
Antenna system PN L 154,147 239,847
Base station RF subsystem EU ST Z 4 (41,997) 15,943
Coverage extension solution BELMAE 27,192 7,998
Reconciliation of segment results to D EBREETA
(loss) profit before taxation: (B18) A YA - 139,342 263,788
Other income and expenses HARA KX 32,374 27,742
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEMERST (217,745) (206,183)
Finance costs B PKAR (14,568) (13,099)
Share of results of associates i UNCIE i (383) (292)
(Loss) profit before taxation BAT (&8 ) FE (60,980) 71956

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)

KWARDEER (£Z)
EEIBURARSBEENER(E)
2017 2016
2017 & 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Other segment information HitpHER
Depreciation: E
Antenna system PN L0 12,061 13,760
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 9,452 7,527
Coverage extension solution BELHAR 1,193 1,469
Segment total (Note) o B R (PHEE) 22,706 22,756
Unallocated amount PVl e 16,257 14941
Group total SEA 38,963 37,697
Research and development costs: BRI
Antenna system NS0 55,406 48598
Base station RF subsystem EU ST Z M 47,698 38,812
Coverage extension solution BELMAER 3,643 2,274
Group total (Note) SEE () 106,747 89,684
Amortisation B
Antenna system PN L 3,517 6,286
Base station RF subsystem EU ST 24 2,755 3438
Group total (Note) SE@ () 6272 9,724
Allowance for inventories FE#E
Base station RF subsystem RIS R 55,228 5,700
Group total (Note) SEBE (PH3E) 55,228 5,700

Note:  Amounts included in the measure of segment results.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe)

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

BB R M

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont d)
Revenues reported above represent revenues generated from external customers.

There are no inter-segment sales for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 3. The Group does not allocate other income
and expenses, unallocated corporate expenses, finance costs and share of results
of associates to individual reportable segments when making decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assessing their performance. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such information
is not reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5. WARSHER#E)
Entity-wide disclosures: BREZEKEESR
Information about products BHERHER
Revenues from each group of similar products within the operating segments are as REDHANESBOERAR KA
follows: I
2017 2016
2017 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Antenna system KEETE
Low-band refarming/ loT antennas EAREH /M AX AR 235,936 6,502
Multi-band/Multi-system antennas VeSS PN 202,841 78974
W-CDMA/FDD-LTE W-CDMA/FDD-LTEE$8,/
single-band/multi-band antennas EQVN 118,094 259,437
TD-LTE/SCDMA antennas TD-LTE/SCDMA K 47,202 343296
CDMA/GSM antennas CDMA/GSM K & 34,270 76,990
Microwave antennas TR K45 21,374 22934
AAU antennas AAU Z BB R 45 16,708 31,707
Other antennas H A R E% 78,366 62810
754,791 882,650
Base station RF subsystem HILH T ZAE
Low-band refarming/ loT RF devices SRS MR A8 5T BRI+ 203,404 33430
W-CDMAV/LTE RF devices W-CDMA/LTE 7 $A23 1 184,736 304,358
GSM RF devices GSMgT SRR 14 93,055 89,872
TD-SCDMA RF devices TD-SCDMA 51 S8 28 {F 79,951 20,682
Other devices H s 31,660 34505
592,806 482,847
Coverage extension solution BEUEMEE
Aesthetic antennas FLRE 70,821 77556
Other products HoAh 2 o 4,023 16,651
74,844 94207
1,422,441 |,459,704

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5. WARSHERE)
Information about major customers FRIEEFMER
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the RENREBAFEHRERRAREER
total revenue of the Group are as follows: RAERIR 10% B P RIRALT ¢
2017 2016
2017 F 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Customer A HEEA 655,577 809,556
Customer B? EPB 236,795 72969
Customer C' gRC 230,497 162,112
Revenue from antenna system and base station RF subsystem. TERAARBREGREIST AT RGN
WA
2 Revenue from antenna system 2 TERAREELHWA
Geographical information it EE R
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented EBRAEERBAINTERE W ARER
based on the location where the goods are delivered to: TRESNEYHNERY
2017 2016
2017 F 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

The PRC es 1,143,301 1,280,882

Overseas RSB
Russia fika i 56,869 10,837
Mexico 2 50,665 44520
Netherlands far B 46,377 31,847
India g 39,060 2,866
Japan AR 20,629 19,047
Taiwan, PRC A 19,021 5983
Canada mex 18,468 17,221
Others Hith 28,051 46,501

Subtotal NE 279,140 178,822

1,422,441 | 459,704
All non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) of the Group are located in AEERBHFRDEERERAEE
the PRC. BrON BRI AR o
1 58 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES HtW ARBEX
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Government grants BR#Eh &
— related to expense items (Note) —Hif < 18 B AR (P L) 9,157 12977
— related to assets (note 23) —BEEERB(ME23) 4,620 4,622
Rental income G UN 8,859 7593
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF T B WA 4,539 4360
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment  HEYZE « HFE kX EREE (1,138) (1,584)
Compensation income (expense) rERAFAL) 4,425 (193)
Others HAth 1,912 (33)
32,374 27,742

Note: The amounts represent incentives from various PRC government authorities in connection
with the enterprise expansion support, technology advancement support and product

development support during the year, which had no conditions imposed by the respective

WiEE - ZEFREFRT S BTSN S
DEER  RITESRERRERGT
R E2E) - % F BT BBUTHEE T

PRC government authorities. BB A A o
FINANCE COSTS 7. BBEAE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERAE 14,568 13,099

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

8. TAXATION 8. WHIE

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETT

Current Tax: BIHARA IR -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PEREMAER(TEERMAER]) 371 11517
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERNER 55 1,089
426 12,606
Under provision in prior year FEREBEIR — 359
Deferred tax (note 15) EIERTE (BT 15) (12,897) (6,858)
(12,471) 6,107

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and is exempted from

income tax. It is not subject to tax in other jurisdictions.

Hong Kong

The applicable tax rate of MOBI Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“MOBI HK") is

16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (Contd)

The PRC

In September 2014, MOBI Shenzhen was defined by Shenzhen Finance Bureau,
Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen Municipality and Shenzhen Municipal
office of the State Administration of Taxation (the “Authorities”) as a High and
New Technology Enterprise and therefore was entitled to 5% preferential tax
rate from EIT for three years starting from the year ended 31 December 2014,
according to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. On 31 October 2017, the
Authorities have further extended the preferential tax rate for another three years
starting from the year ended 3| December 2017. Accordingly, the tax rate for
MOBI Shenzhen is 15% for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 201 6.

In December 2016, MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Xian") was
defined by Province Finance Bureau and Administrator of Local Taxation of
Municipality and Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation in Shaan
Xi, as a High and New Technology Enterprise and therefore was entitled to
|5% preferential tax rate from EIT for three years starting from the year ended
31 December 2016, according to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law.
Accordingly, the tax rate of MOBI Xian is 15% for the year ended 3| December
2017 and 201 6.

In November 2016, MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji An) Co., Ltd.
("MORBI Jian") was defined by Province Finance Bureau and Administrator of
Local Taxation of Municipality and Municipal office of the State Administration of
Taxation in Jiang Xi, as a High and New Technology Enterprise and therefore was
entitled to 15% preferential tax rate from EIT for three years starting from the year
ended 3| December 2016, according to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law.
Accordingly, the tax rate of MOBI Jian is 5% for the year ended 31 December
2017 and 201 6.

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries are 25 % (2016: 25%) for the year
ended 3| December 2017.

ELERERLA
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For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

TAXATION (Contd)

The PRC (Cont'd)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to (loss) profit before taxation per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

BiIE ()

HE (&)

FARBA ERARR R EM2EK
R ABR AT (B 1R ) B AR -

2017 2016

20174 20165

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

(Loss) profit before taxation iR (&8 ) F (60,980) 71,956
Tax at PRC EIT at 15% (Note a) RPN EMERBE 5%

SEOHIE(MT) (9,147) 10,793

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose NERR IR & H S MRS & 2,438 1,370

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BARBRBANH B E (329) (390)

Tax benefit (Note b) Bz (P93t b) (6,177) (5,338)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBBEENRETE 1,513 —

Tax effect of deductible temporary AERAENERHEREN

differences not recognised M2 - (378)

Effect of different tax rates of group entities SEERNTARENTE (769) (309)

Under provision in prior year FFEEEBETR — 359

(12471) 6,107

Notes:

(@) Applicable income tax rate of 15% represents the relevant income tax rate of MOBI

Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian, the major subsidiaries of the Company.

(b)  Tax benefit represents an incentive scheme that, in addition to the research and
development cost incurred which is deductible for tax purpose, a further 50% of certain of

the research and development cost incurred is deductible.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting) the following

FEHR)

FEBR)NEESHERGA)ATE

items: B :
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) EESEAC ) 5,807 7,064
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREMET B 29,993 24216
Equity-settled share based payment DA A B AR R ETE AR 2,272 6,100
Staff costs included in research and development costs 8 & T A A 71,218 51,056
Other staff costs Hi B TR 240,651 186,22
349,941 274,657

Auditors' remuneration (including remuneration ZEMM e (B

for non-audit services) FERBRBEHEE) 2,551 2,126
Operating lease rentals in respect of BRNTRENKZHEHRS

— prepaid lease payments —ENHENE 668 668

— rented premises —BHmE 9,505 5814
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRERE 38,963 37,697
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESH 6,272 9,724
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRRRAXHFERA 1,176,352 1,106,232
Allowance for inventories (included in cost of sales) 7 & B (FF ASHERA) 55,228 5,700
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment ~ HEYE - HE R ERNEE 1,138 1,584
Allowance for (reversal of allowance for) REREETR(EME)

doubtful debts 7927 (106)

ELERERLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 0. EBERFETRAEMSE
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments ESRIETHAEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and chief executive R E A & AR B K 2 AR B PR R
by the Group in connection with the management of the affairs of the Group, B AEECNAENEESEREE
disclosed pursuant to the applicable listing Rule and Companies Ordinance are as THRABHBMEWT
follows:
2017
W0I17%F
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic
Retirement salaries and  Equity-settled
benefits allowances)  share base
scheme HittEH & payment
contributions (FERE NEREE
Fees RAER Bonus :#23 NRB A Total
we  FEMX ®e RERE)  E#OAR @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARWTR ARMTR ARETR

Executive directors YITES

Hu Xiang (Note a) A (et a) 87 — 1,084 657 109 1,937
Liao Dong BR 69 21 955 633 135 1,813
Chen Zhaojun BKE 69 20 725 609 9l 1,514
Non-executive director FHTEE

Qu Degian EE% 86 — — — Zy] 128

Independent non-
executive directors BUEHTES

Li Tianshu ZRET 156 — — — — 156
Zhang Han G 121 — — — — 121
Li Guinian THE 138 — — — — 138
726 4 2,764 1,899 377 5,807
1 64 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd)

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

0. EEXRFETHAEME (&)
ESRIETHRAEME (&)

2016
2016%F
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic
Retirement salariesand  Equity-settled
benefits allowances) share base
scheme HEiEe payment
contributions (F20E NEREE
Fees RIKEN Bonus E% R B Total
BE RN ®e KRR AR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETR ARBTI ARMTE ARETZ ARETR
Executive directors HTES
Hu Xiang (Note a) A (Pt a) 87 — 1,604 522 237 2,450
Liao Dong BE 69 I8 l,166 501 323 2,077
Chen Zhaojun (Note b)  FRIKZE (FffsEb) 30 17 1,029 47 229 | 777
Non-executive directors ~ FFHTES
Qu Degian EE% 86 — — — 106 192
Yang Dong (Note b) FR(MED) 49 — — — 106 155
Independent non-
executive directors BYFHTES
Li Tianshu FRA 156 — — — — 156
Zhang Han R 137 — — — — 137
Li Guinian FRF 120 — — — — 120
734 35 3799 495 1,001 7,064

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries and their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries. The non-
executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors
of the Company or its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors'

emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which

are determined based on the performance of the Group.

ELERERLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

10. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Hu Xiang is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his emoluments

disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

The retirement benefit scheme contribution of Mr. Hu Xiang is paid by Shenzhen
Zhongxing Weixiantong Shebei Co, Ltd. (FYITT EAESTBREBRAT) ('SZWS")

as he is also a director of SZWS. SZWS is controlled by a group of common controlling

shareholders of the Company and SZWS (details of which are set out in the prospectus of
the Company dated 4 December 2009).

(b) On 26 July 2016, the board of directors approved the resignation of Mr. Yang Dong from

non-executive director and approved Mr. Chen Zhaojun as an executive director with

effect from 26 July 2016.

During the year ended 3| December 2017 and 2016, no emoluments were paid

by the Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of

the directors or the five highest paid individuals has waived any emoluments during

the year ended 3| December 2017 and 201 6.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 10.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals included three (2016: three) directors for the

year ended 3| December 2017, details of whose emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: two) highest paid individuals are as

follows:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

EERFETBRAEME (&)

=11

BZE0I7F12A3BILEE B4
ERFMALTEE=4AQ06F: =
BEE HEHMEFBEN L -
HBME(016%F : ME) TR HA
THMeEHIN AT -

2017 2016
2017 F 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
— salaries and other benefits — & REMER [,I10 965
—bonus — 1% 1,632 1,830
— equity-settled share based payment — RSB UG AERNNR 180 452
— contributions to retirement benefits scheme —RIRBFFT IR 40 36
2,962 3,283

Their emoluments were within the following bands: WERH BN RAT 86 [F
2017 2016
2017 F 20165
No. of employees  No. of employees
BEAH EBEAH
— Nil to HKD1,000,000 (note) —ZZ 1,000,000 87T (HisE) — —
—HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 —1,000,001 /ETTE 1,500,000 /87T 2 2

Note: HKD is short for Hong Kong dollar.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

M BLRBBELES -
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

DIVIDENDS

KA
2017 2016
2017 F 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:  F ATERIED REIILE. -

2016 final dividend of HKD0.04 per share 2016 FREIR G004 78T
(2016: 2015 final dividend of HKD0.04 per share) (20164 : 2015 FREI S
(note) B 0.04 %) (FH3E)

28,442 28,072

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of HKD0.04 per
share respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 amounting to approximately
HKD32,828,000 (equivalent to RMB26,429,000) has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

The final dividend of HKDO0.04 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2016 was approved by the shareholders in the 2017 annual general

meeting on 25 May 2017.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

12.

The eaming figures for calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share

attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company are based on the following

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

Bk (BR) &R
MG ERRREBRERARES
REAREB(BER)BANANEF

data: TR IO BB E
2017 2016
2017 5 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR
(Loss) earnings (E1E)EF
(loss) profit for the year and attributable to owners AR B A AL FR(EE)&F
of the Company and (loss) earings for purpose RBETEGRERLEE (B1E)
of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share BFE (E18) & (48,509) 65,849
2017 2016
20175 20165
’000 '000
TR Thx
Number of shares BRGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for AEHEERER(ER) BT
the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share B & E AR I T 819,364 818907
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares LRREEEETE
— 2013 share options —2013 FHERRIE — 628
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for AT ESREE(BHR) BTN
the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings per share LRI 819,364 819,535

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the computation of diluted loss per share

does not assume the exercise of the Company's outstanding share option since

their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the computation of diluted eamings per

share did not assume the exercise of the Company's share option granted in 2015

under the Share Option Scheme because the exercise price of those options was

higher than the average market prices of share.

ELERERLA

2017 & iR

BEWI7FNANBLEESRE
BREANGE  WEBRRTERDA
WMAITEERE - DERETEES
BHREREBERD -

HEWI6FNANALFESRE
BRANNHE  TERRTERER
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31 BILEE

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y% -  WEKRRE

Furniture
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment  improvements Motor Plantand ~ Construction
Buildings RE HE vehicles machinery in progress Total
BF RERRE WEEE RE  BERESE ERIRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR¥TR AR®TR ARWMTR AR¥TT AR¥TR AR®Tx
COsT B
At | January 2016 72016F 1 A 1A 283224 22380 5,755 5,300 236418 3242 585,499
Additions RE 12416 8170 1,109 1,047 20798 955 44,495
Transfer BE 780 — — — 697 (1477) —
Disposals HE 2431 (3928) — 212) (36,103) — (42674)
Reclassification ENNE (4443) (66) 3762 — 747 — —
At 31 December 2016 72016F12A31 8 289546 26,556 10,626 6135 22557 31,900 587,320
Additions NE 3900 11,058 309 712 30,502 28,331 74812
Transfer Bz 6,830 — — — — (6830) —
Disposals HE (206) (3939) — (943) (18420) — (23,508)
At 31 December 2017 RR2017F12A31 8 300,070 33,675 10,935 5904 234,639 53401 638,624
DEPRECIATION AND TEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At | January 2016 RR2016F 1 A 1A 31,366 12,421 3642 3116 150,261 — 200,806
Provided for the year FREE 9,376 3,365 655 659 23642 37,697
Eliminated on disposals HEHE 2215) (1929) — 202) (34,285) — (38631)
Reclassification EXiipa) (672) 43) 672 — 4 — —
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12A31 8 37,855 13814 4969 3573 139,661 — 199,872
Provided for the year EREE 10,488 4,689 3 790 22964 — 38963
Eliminated on disposals HERH (44) (2514) — (668) (9,745) — (12971)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31 8 48299 15,989 5,001 3,695 152,880 - 225,864
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RR2017F12A318 251771 17,686 5934 2209 81,759 53401 412,760
At 31 December 2016 RR2016F12A31 8 251,691 12,742 5,657 2,562 8289 31,900 387448

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 13.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of

lease or 30 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 31.7%
Leasehold improvements 3% - 33.3%
Motor vehicles 9.5% - 19%

Plant and machinery 9% - 33.3%

The Group's buildings are situated in the PRC under medium-term land use rights.

The Group was in process of obtaining certain relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with carrying amount of approximately RMB14,507,000
(2016: RMB8,820,000) in property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2017.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property ownership

certificate can be obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

M - BERRE (2)

MmE - BERRBHEREZIRZEING
TEDRE I BEFHRAUNEREL
ERMGRIBRBEERIZATFEME
PRAETER

BF HEFHY
30F (MR
RERE)
HE  REREE 19%-31.7%
HEMEEE 3%-33.3%
" 9.5%-19%

99%-33.3%

AEBURPENOBFRPHLIHNE
RS -

AEEFERBEETEETNEERE
EMERE EVE BELRXHE
R2I7EFNRABHEEENAA
R #14,507,0007C(20165F : A R ¥
8,8200007C) e RRAIEERA  AI R
FRGHEEEREES MI8E
HEERMA
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

4. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

4. FENHEERE

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMEF T ARETT
Land use rights in the PRC R ELE) + 3 AR EATE S
Medium-term lease 27,426 28,094
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EX 30 i
Current portion BNERER 668 668
Non-current portion FERNEAED S 26,758 27426
27,426 28,094
I5.  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS I5. EEREEE
Excess of
accounting
depreciation
over tax Unrealised
Allowance depreciation profit of inter- Share-base
for BFHE  Alowancefor  company sales payment
inventories BEBE  doubtful debts ATRMHEMN Taxlosses  ABRBAEH Total
FERE  HENER RERE  REREF HEER ENEN -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTT AR%TR ARETR ARETR AR%T:R
At | January 2016 RWI6EI A8 2094 8827 1,056 8255 — 2871 23,103
Credit (charge) to EEEREAR (k)
profit or loss 767 (2,146) 212) 762 6,622 1,065 6858
At 31 December 2016 0168128318 2861 6,681 844 9,017 6,622 3936 29961
Credit (charge) to EEEREAR (k)
profit or loss 7,994 (2635) 905 (5015) 11372 276 12897
At 31 December 2017 0178128318 10,855 4,046 1,749 4,002 17,994 4212 42858
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMBI126,128,000 (2016: RMB48,419,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of RMBI 15,805,000 (2016:
RMB44,149,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining RMB10,323,000 (2016: RMB4,270,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses is tax loss of
RMB126,128,000 (2016: RMB48,419,000) which will expire in the following years

ending 3| December:

5.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

ELEREEE (&)

REBRPAKR AEERPABBE
B AR 1261280007T(20165 : A
R #48,419,000 7T ) AT A B 45 5 K 2R
wH e EMARECEHEHEEAA
R #1158050007(2016%F : A B
#44,149.0007T ) © R ER W K B R
RRABFIRAOTATER M RMIE
&2 T AR #103230007c(2016
F o ARME42700007T ) HERB S B
B APANBEREBEHRBEREA
R #126,1280007T(20165F : A R ¥
48,419,0007T) * BRATEZE 12 A3
RIEFEER :

2017 2016
2017 & 20164F
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Unused tax losses with expiry in: RUTEEREN A BREESE -
-2018 —20184F — —
-2019 —20194F — —
-2020 —20204F 4270 4270
-2021 —2021 F 44,149 44,149
-2022 —20024F 77,709 —
126,128 48419

Under the relevant laws of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits eamed by the PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB569,447,000 (2016: RMB613,083,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

B EEEEE  B2008FA
B RPETFRARNENE
EEREBBMTEINT 558 KW
KA R EF R B EG R
T = 58 A R 569,447,000 70(2016
F o AR 613,083,0007T) sHRIEEFR
B BAREEEHI RO ERERE
HEE BEREERVERTRK
REME o
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS l6. EFEE
Development
costs
BRERA
RMB’000
ARETT
COST A
At | January 2016 M2016% 1 A1 H 57,110
Additions NE 13,657
At 31 December 2016 B2016%F 12 A31 B 70,767
Additions NE 18,248
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318 89,015
AMORTISATION # 55
At | January 2016 R2016F 1 A1 H 26,667
Charge for the year FAHER 9,724
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F 12831 H 36,391
Charge for the year FAME 6272
At 31 December 2017 M2017F 124318 42663
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2017 B2017%F 12831 B 46,352
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F 12431 H 34,376

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd)

Development costs on antenna system (LTE antennas and Multi-system Antennas)
and base station RF subsystem (LTE filters and new models dedicated for some
customers) are internally generated and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the 3 years when they are ready for use. Included in the development costs
of approximately RMB33.7 million (2016: RMB27.0 million) were relating to
development of systems not ready for the intended use and, accordingly, no
amortisation was made. The developments of systems not ready for the intended
use are expected to generate net cash flow to the Group, and no impairment loss

has been recognised.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group conducted a review of those Group's

intangible assets, which are not ready for the intended use.

The recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, the new products’ growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and
direct costs during the period that cash flow forecasts are made. The management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the intangible assets. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the

market.

For impairment purpose, the Group prepared cash flow forecasts based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering a 3-years period, taking into
account the anticipation of further expansion of 3G, 4G and 5G market in which

the intangible assets are developed for.

As at the end of the reporting period, any reasonably possible change to key
assumptions applied are not likely to cause the recoverable amounts to be below

the carrying amount of intangible assets.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

6.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

BREE (&)
ABZRG(TERERZ ZHRE) R E
AT RG(LTERERRE AR L
EP&etmamiE) M BEBK AN AR
BEE - REHERREIERNNESRE
By BREKAFHARKERTAEE
(016 : ARB270EE L) ERK
REBRTRENRREERE At
AT LA - ReERTERBRMER
REREHERAASEELARERE
FE I ERRREES -

M2017F R2016F12A318H K&
BB EREIEBMTRENERE
EO

AREeEEEREEFESL - &
MEEFENERRIIRFTRE
MEmBERERELRETERNH
REENERRANESRES - B2
ERARRERTSHEEREER
BREVEERESRRMNBAANZF
BIRE - BREDEANTEERRE
BGH -  SEREEKANED IR

BRERRETSEHRKEHOEY
fE

BREMS  AERBRELEEREM3
FHRERENMRBEERHERERE
A WERNEREBEVEESREN
FEHI3G ~ 4G R SCTIGH)#E — R

B2 BE - A BRI RS R
EAABTEEBTAT @SR
BB BER T AENRE -
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

I7. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REEQT 2R
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARETR ARETT

Cost of interests in associates RERE R B 2 e 2 R 2,700 500
Share of post-acquisition profits and other FE(GUNEE 18 % F R 2 E U 2%
comprehensive income, net of dividends received R B R B (675) (292)
2,025 208
Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as follow: NTRERBRAEENEE R AN

Country of ~ Principal

Incorporation/ place of Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity registration  business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
EMRY,/ FTEEHED AEEEAEN AEBREN
BRER AMER NI EE BEABRLA ERELA TEXRED
2017 2016 2017 2016

W0I7& 20165 017 20165

Shenzhen Borynet Co, Ltd. (Note) ~ The PRC The PRC 5.1% 5.1% 15.1% 5.1%  Software technology development
AMITEEERMEARDRE T i FRHHRER

(F&E)
Shenzhen Letengwireless Co., Ltd.  The PRC The PRC 12% — 12% — Hardware development

(Note) i i B

RIERERARLE (M)

Note: These companies are accounted for as associates as at year end date as the Group has et AR RS EFEEREFAEEEGNE

appointed directors in the board of these companies and is able to exercise significant ZEARERUHZEARABITEATNE %
influence in these companies. SRENFEEERBARIEBERT -
1 76 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

INVENTORIES At
2017 2016
20178 20165
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT
Raw materials R 74,603 89,556
Work-in-progress T2 33,938 24,887
Finished goods BUpK an 373,848 245527
Less: allowance for inventories o FERE (69,005) (19,768)
413,384 340,202
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B 5 RHEMEWIRR
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFT
Trade receivables e E 5 8RR 497,589 460,276
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (11,660) (5,628)
485,929 454,648
Notes and bills receivable S 419,638 417,683
Rental and utility deposits Me kEkze 871 671
Advance to suppliers R R 41,616 23922
Value added tax receivable FEUIE(E TR 53,646 10,641
Other receivables and deposits H o R BR TR S e & 28,777 36,353
1,030,477 943918

ELERERLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

BEZREMBERRR (&)

REGFEEE
2017 2016
2017 & 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 5,628 7,038
Impairment losses recognised on receivables B R BN FIEREEE 7,927 —
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts REREBERR — (106)
Amounts written off as uncollectible TeRKEIEME . 25 (1,895) (1,304)
Balance at end of the year FIRAER 11,660 5,628

Allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of approximately RMBI 1,660,000 (2016: RMB5,628,000) which
have defaulted on payment. The Company considers that the recoverability of
these receivables is low and therefore allowance for bad and doubtful debts has

been provided. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (Contd)

The Group offers credit terms generally accepted in the antenna system, base
station RF subsystem and coverage extension solution manufacturing industry to
its trade customers, which range from 30 to 240 days (2016: 30 to 240 days), for
a significant number of the Company’s products. For the Group's major customers
which are network operators and domestic and overseas wireless network solution
providers with good reputation and repayment records, a longer credit term may
be extended to them, depending on price, the size of the contract, credibility and
reputation of them. Amounts due from these major customers as at 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately RMB389,913,000 (2016: RMB333,103,000),
representing 78.4% (2016: 72.4%) of trade receivables (before making allowance
for doubtful debt). In order to manage the credit risks associated with trade
receivables effectively, credit limits of customers are evaluated periodically. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research on the creditworthiness
of the new customer and assesses the potential customer’s credit quality. Trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record

attributable to their corresponding research on the creditworthiness.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

9.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

B REMBWRIRR (&)
RIGEELEE (E)

AEERESEPRUERERA &
AT R R BB REETT
ELEEXWNEES KAARKE
EmMEEHN F30E240R8(2016
F:30%82400)  BRAERERED
REIRIMNEGBEBATREEEE
BAERMEERNRCHNAEEE
EEP THERERRNEED
BYER GRAK FEEPNE
AERBEME - R20175F 1243
A BREBZTZEXPHRENR
A R #389913,0007L(2016%F : AR
#333,103,0007T) 15 B E F RN
(fEH RARBEAT) M 78.4% (2016 F
724%) c RERERRENRE ZEX
HEMEERR  AARTHYEER
HEERBETITE AEEEMRT
MHEFR - @HEZEMELHE
ARBRTEEEFPNEEER 1R
BEEEESS  AAERBHTER
BERREKE SR TESRIMR
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

9.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (Contd)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of impairment losses

presented based on the invoice dates:

BEZREMBERRR (&)

RIGEELEE (E)

UTRRERE B OERE SRR
(R RERR) R ERER DT -

2017 2016

2017 5 20165

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARBTT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 142,581 167,315
31 to 60 days 31E260H 74,198 52,848
61 to 90 days 61 290H 43,556 26,443
91 to 120 days 91 £ 120H 38,296 32,067
121 to 180 days 1212180 H 42,056 46,319
Over 180 days #@iA 180 H 145,242 129,656
485,929 454,648

Aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

ERMETERENEKE SRR

BRER DT -

2017 2016

20174 20165

RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

0to 30 days 0&30H 4,460 225

31 to 60 days 31£60H 3,502 296

61 to 90 days 61 290H 2,869 1,286

91 to 120 days 9IEI20H 696 5,794

121 to 180 days 1212180 H 641 23

Over 180 days 838 180 H 9,535 12,157

Total 5t 21,703 19,781
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. AEEMERERANZEERIER

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (Contd)

The following is an aged analysis of notes and bills receivable presented based on

the invoice dates:

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

BEZREMBERRR (&)
RIGEELEE (E)

AT RERERE B OEREROR
SRR

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 90,410 67,450
31 to 60 days 31E260H 65,523 63,634
61 to 90 days 61 290H 86,292 47,839
91 to 120 days 91 £ 120H 52,365 [11,915
Over 120 days i 120 125,048 126,845

419,638 417,683

Al of the notes and bills receivables are neither due nor impaired.

As at 3| December 2017, the Group pledged notes receivables with carrying
amount of approximately RMB70,657,000 (2016: RMB225,852,000) to secure bank

borrowings (note 22 (a)). Detail of pledge of assets set out in note 30.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

IR R EG AR B R X R -

R217F 128318 AEBEERE
EEL AR 70,657,0007T(20164F :
AR#225,852,0007T) K EHELR - A
BERBTERMF20)  EEEH
EAEE NI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

20.

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group's pledged bank balances represent bank deposits with original maturity
within 12 months and carry fixed interest rate from 0.3% to 1.55% (2016: 0.3% to
1.55%) per annum. They are mainly pledged to banks to secure bills payables of the
Group.

The Group's bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank deposits which carry
interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.30% (2016: 0.001% to
0.30%) per annum.

Certain of the Group’s pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash with an
aggregate amount of RMB3 13,141,000 (2016: RMB352,816,000) were denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the international market.
The government of the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions

imposed by the government of the PRC.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. ESREMENER
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

Trade payables e B 5B 458,248 298,000
Notes and bills payable N RIE 262,444 240,121
Payroll payable BRTIE 42,580 34,580
Payable for purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BFERERED
equipment FERTBR R 37,469 23,001
Value added taxes payable FERIB (AT 25,283 6,831
Receipt in advance TEWGKRIE 8,920 31,549
Accrued expenses HERER 19,934 13,890
Others Hity 13,422 15925
868,300 663,897
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice RIEEZHHFANENE SRR
dates: ROTWT
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

0to 30 days 0F30H 117,696 78,709
31 to 60 days 3IIE60H 156,005 75529
61 to 90 days 61 290H 73,687 48,768
91 to 180 days 91 ZE180H 58,165 71,102
Over 180 days #8180 A 52,695 23,892
458,248 298,000
Typical credit term of trade payables ranges from 60 to 120 days. B SEREFNEER-—REER 0
HZEI20H -
BEB#ERAERAA 1 83

2017 & iR
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd)

The following is an aged analysis of notes and bills payable presented based on the

invoice dates:

EFRHMESRIRE)
RIEEZBHFTHENZENERRD
s U NNE

2017 2016
2017 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 76,814 48,455
31 to 60 days 3R 60H 71,673 39474
61 to 90 days 61 290 H 4,601 74312
Over 90 days #iE90 B 109,356 77,880

262,444 240,121

Typical credit term of bills payables ranges from 90 to 180 days.

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all

payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK BORROWINGS

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

22. SRITER

Categories Ll Notes 2017 2016
P E 20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Long-term bank borrowings: REFSRITRE -
— Secured fixed rate borrowings —EHERAEEER (a) — 70,000
Short-term bank borrowings: RERRITIE X -
— Secured fixed rate borrowings —BEATEEMER (@ 60,000 —
— Secured floating rate borrowings —BHEMTEER (b) 52,464 70,787
— Unsecured fixed rate borrowings —EERE BEX (0 175,000 115,480
287,464 256,267
The amount is repayable as per follows:  FZFXBIZIN NEIRR(EE
— Within one year ——FR 287,464 186,267
— More than one year,
but no more than two years ——FLAL  BNEBAMRF — 70,000
287,464 256,267
Less: Amounts shown B RRBAE
under current liabilities HT 2558 (287,464) (186,267)
Amounts show under non-current liabilities 7421 & B8 T 251518 — 70,000

Notes:

(a) The RMB secured fixed rate borrowings carried interest at the rate of 8.34% (2016: 8.34%)
per annum and were secured by certain notes receivable. Details of pledged assets are

shown in note 30.

(b)  The HKD secured floating rate borrowings carried interest at the rate ranged from the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 1.0% (2016: 1.0% to 2.0%) per annum and

were secured by pledged bank balances. Details of pledge of assets are shown in note 30.

(9 The RMB unsecured fixed rate borrowings carried at the rate ranged from 4.79% to 5.44%
(2016: 2.85% to 4.79%) per annum.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

Wi

ARBHERTEEERNEFEA834
EQ0l6F :834E) AETERIKRE
BIEER - EELHF BRI 305
e

ETRBTAKRTBETIRBAR
TREFEFE(RBRITAERS
FZ ) MI0EQOICE - 10E E20
[E)FFIEGE - AEEMBITHRIE
B BEERFBERME05T o

ARBEEIAESERNENEE479
EES544E (20165 : 285EZ479E) »
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

23.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents non-recurring government grants received for

acquisition and improvement of property, plant and equipment. The deferred

income is released to the profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant

assets. Movements of deferred income during the years are as follows:

23. BEEZEWA
B RE WA F8 B WER FE A M BT # B
& ARKBREEHE  BE &K
o BEWARIBHEEENTERAIE
AEBMBABRRE FRETEKRAD
g -

2017 2016
2017 F 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Government grant related to assets HEEMBENBA®RDE
At beginning of the year NG 16,469 19,091
Additions NE 2,400 2,000
Released to profit or loss REBREREA (4,620) (4,622)
At end of the year RER 14,249 16,469
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMEF T ARBTFT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: IMELS|RARE -
Current portion ENERER 5 ,452 4,620
Non-current portion FEENEREE > 12,797 11,849
14,249 16,469

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 24. DERBRAE
Number of shares Issued capital
BRZEE BRITRAE
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 %F 20165 20174 20165
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares shares shares
EER gl BER EiBk
‘000 ‘000 USD (note i) usb
B TH ER(E) 27
Ordinary shares of USD0.000001 each &% 0.000001 3£ T HJ
gl
Authorised: ERE
At beginning and end of the year RENRER 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000.00 2,000.00
Issued and fully paid ERITRME
At beginning of the year REA) 818,907 818907 81891 81891
Exercise of share options TR A 2,092 2.09
Share repurchased and cancelled (Note i) i {2 B8 8] K 5% 85 (B =E if) (295) (0.30)
At end of the year RER 820,704 818907 820.70 81891

EHERAERRZSF

2017 & iR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

24. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

24.

DERA(#)

Issued capital

BRITRAE
2017 2016
20174 20165
Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
Equivalent Equivalent
EEEBER FELBRK
RMB RMB
AR AR

Issued and fully paid ERITRAE

At beginning of the year REA) 5,727.12 5727.12
Exercise of share options TR 13.87 —
Share repurchased and cancelled (Note) A7 B [ R st o (P o) (2.02) —
At end of the year RER 5,738.97 5727.12

Issued capital shown in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

December 2017 and 2016 were rounded to RMB6,000.

There is no movement of authorised ordinary share during the two years ended 31

December 2017.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)
Notes:

(i) USD is short for United States dollar.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

24. DREIRAK(E)
Mgk -

(y ETRAERETER -

(i) During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as iy FAR ARARBEBERAEATHR

follows:

No. of ordinary

BRES SR -

shares of Price per share
USD0.000001 each SRER
SREME
Month of repurchase 0.000001 7T Highest Lowest Aggregate consideration paid
BE A 7 EERYE BB BiE ENERE
HKD HKD HKD RMB
BT BT B ARYR
2017 September 2017497 295,000 119 [.I5 341,580 288250
The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase. MAEE BRI BT o
None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the FR ARANFAGMERSE - 1

Company's listed securities during the year.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

EFBLUAARREALTES ©
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

25.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share options were granted on 23 December 2013 (“2013 Option”) and 26
March 2015 ("2015 Option”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 22 December 2023 and
25 March 2025 respectively. Under the share option schemes of the Company,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to an individual consultant or advisor who renders or has rendered bona

fide services to the Company.

As 31 December 2017, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding was 59,996,000 (2016: 65,054,000),
representing 7.31% (2016: 7.94%) of the total ordinary shares in issue at end of the
reporting period.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. For 2013 Option and 2015
Option, options may be exercised after the completion of relevant vesting period
to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by
the Board of Directors of the Company, and will not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company's share on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's share.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

25.
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R2013F 128238 K2015F3 8260
P B BB AR (9 B RI2013F B IR
BINRIVISEFERENDNTZENR
MEERAERESRERE Mm%
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2025F3 A2 ER  BEBEARAH
ERESE - ARAREFEEURTAE
BEE (BEARAREFARNESE)
AREAR ARG K BEAREE o Ut - AR
RAAARARKERRRERMHE
350 AR 765 ) 18 71 5 ) B el o BB ) % L BB AR
&

R2017F 128318 SR EBARE
BREEMRITENBRERS RO
B BB A59996000/% (20164
65,054000% ) - IHR MR BT
LRRBEA731%(20165F  7.94%) ©
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

2013 Option

30% of total number of options of 2013 Option (“2013 Option A") are exercisable
on the second anniversary date of grant, 30% of total number of options of 2013
Option (“2013 Option B") are exercisable on the third anniversary date of grant
and the remaining 40% of total number of options of 2013 Option (“2013 Option
C") are exercisable on the fourth anniversary date of grant. In addition, 2013
Option is also subjected to the performance condition of the Group and individual

employee to exercise.

Pursuant to the board resolution on 29 May 2015, the 2013 Option was amended
whereby the vesting dates of the option has been accelerated. 2013 Option A
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | June 2015, 2013 Option B
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | April 2016 and 2013 Option C
shall be vested on, and become exercisable from | April 2017. Such amendment
is applicable prospectively to the unexercised 2013 Option and result in a net
decrease in fair value of such option measured immediately before and after the
modifications, of which no adjustment for the year ended 31 December 2017

needed to the fair value of the 2013 Option.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

25.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

UBRBZNNRS (&)

2013 FRERE

2013 4F AR O B AR T 48 BN 30%
(MOBFEEREADITRARHABRE
ZEBFHETE 2013 FERAER
PR R A 30% (12013 FEERREB ) 7]
RELAHE=EAFAHTE M
2013 F FE IR A P AR P 4R U0 R T 40%
(MOBFEREC)IRAREARE
MO EEE BERATEE © U5 - 20135
RETEREASEREREENR
BIGHEFAIITE -

BRIBEWISESAVAMEST S RE
£ 013FBRETAER  HhEE
IRIER 5B B EAAR AT © 2013 F B IR
BABRISFA I BRE  WEZ
BEA F1T7{F 2013 FBREBB R
016F4H 1 BEE  TEZBRAT
T R20I13FERECHN201754
AIBRE  YEZARYTTFITE - %
BRI B YRR RITER 2013 FHER
B BRERET AN RERBE A
ENBEREAFELBR O FE X
FEZE2017FNANBLEEERA
2013 FBREN AT EEL A -
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

25.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

2015 Option

30% of total number of options of 2015 Option (“2015 Option A") are exercisable
on the second anniversary date of grant, 30% of total number of options of 2015
Option (“2015 Option B") are exercisable on the third anniversary date of grant
and the remaining 40% of total number of options of 2015 Option (“2015 Option
C") are exercisable on the fourth anniversary date of grant. In addition, 2015
Option is also subjected to the performance condition of the Group and individual

employee to exercise.

25.

UBRBZNNRS (&)

2015 FEERE

2015 4F B8 AR 1 O B AR T 48 B e 30%
(M0ISFEBREADTRRHABRE
ZEBEFHETE - 2015 FRERER
R 1B &) 30% (12015 FHERRIER L) 7]
RELBHE=ERFAMITE M
2015 F FE IR A B AR PE 4B U0 BR T 40%
(MOISFEREC)IRAREARE
MO EEE BERAT(E o U5 - 20155
RETEREASEREREENR
RIGHEA AT -

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

BEENARBEENFRNT

Fair value

at grant date

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period Exercise price REASH

BRESH RiAH BRH s T8 AYE

2013 Option A 23122013 23/1212013 0 31/05/2015 0110612015 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBOS

WI3EREREA W3E1ABE WIENABAHE WSE6AIAE ARBIOT  ARBOSIT
015%5A31 8 WBF12ANA

2013 Option B 23122013 23/1202013 0 31/03/2016 011042016 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBOS

2013 FHBRER W3E1ABE WIENABAHE WeF4R1AE ARBIOT  ARBOSIT
W016F3A31A WBF12ANA

2013 Option C 23122013 23/1202013 0 31/03/2017 011042017 to 22/12/2023 RMBI.09 RMBOS

W13 FRREC W3E1ABE WIENABAHE WT7E4R1RE ARBIOT  ARBOSIT
017%3A318 WBF12ANA

2015 Option A 2610312015 2610312015 to 31/03/2016 0110412016 to 25/03/2025 RMBI 47 RMBOS

2015 FRREA 2015%3A2H W5F38H% WeF4R1AE ARE 147 AR%06I T
W016F3A31A 200563A25R

2015 Option B 2610312015 2610312015 to 31/03/2017 0110412017 to 25/03/2025 RMBI 47 RMBOS

2015 FRRIER 2015%3A2H W5F38H% WT7E4R1RE ARE 147 AR%06I T
017%3A318 200563A25R

2015 Option C 2610312015 2610312015 to 31/03/2018 0110412018 to 25/03/2025 RMBI 47 RMBOS

2015 FRREC 2015%3A2H W5F38H% WIsE4R1AE ARE 141 AR%06I T
018%3A31A 200563A25A

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

2015 Option (Contd)

25. UROXNHRE (&)

In respect of share option exercised during the year ended 31 December 2017, the

weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is RMB1.34 (2016: nil).

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options held by

0I5 FEEREE)

TEE2007FN2A3IBILFEITE
MEER AR S - 1T A BM N F
HREBAARE134T(20165F : F) o

TERBEEAERALIRAENARRE

eligble persons: AR RERA Y -
2017 2017 %
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
1.1.2017 Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired 31.12.2017
R2017F during during during during 20175
Option type lRIA the year the year the year the year 12A318
BREER HATE REARE RERRK REATE RFABRR - HATE
2013 Option A 2013 SERERRE A 10,106,000 — (546,000) (675,000) — 8,885,000
2013 Option B 013 FEREB 10,692,000 — (546,000) (697,000) — 9,449,000
2013 Option C WI3FEREC 14,256,000 — (464,000) (720,000) — 13072000
2015 Option A 2015 S EBRRE A 9,000,000 — (423,000) — — 8,577,000
2015 Option B 2015 FEREB 9,000,000 — (423,000) — — 8,577,000
2015 Option C 2015 FREREC 12,000,000 — (564,000) — — 11436000
65,054,000 —  (2966000) (2092000 — 59,996,000
Exercisable at the end ARERTE
of the year 59,996,000
Weighted average IEFT6REE RMBI.4324 —  RMBI3934  RMBI.I957 —  RMB 13448
exercise price AR AR ARH AR
14324 7T 139347C 11957 7T 1.3448 7T

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

25.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 25. URHBZFNRE (£)
2015 Option (Cont'd) 015 FEREE)
2016 20165
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
112016 Granted Forfeited Exercised Expired 31.12.2016
2016 5F during during during during 2016 5F
Option type lA1A the year the year the year the year 2A318
RiEER MATE RERRL REARK RERTE RFRER  HRTE
2013 Option A 013 FEBREA 1,487,800 —  (1,381,800) — — 10,106,000
2013 Option B 013 FRERESB 12,073,800 — (1,381,800) — — 10,692,000
2013 Option C 013 FEREC 16,098,400 — (1,842,400 — — 14,256,000
2015 Option A 2015 FREREA 9,000,000 — — — — 9,000,000
2015 Option B 2015 FRERESR 9,000,000 — — — — 9,000,000
2015 Option C 2015 FEREC 12,000,000 — — — — 12,000,000
69,660,000 — (4,606,000 — — 65,054,000
Exercisable at the end AIRERITRE
of the year 65,054,000
Weighted average IET1THE(E RMBI 4193 —  RMBI.I953 — —  RMBIA4324
exercise price AR AR AR
[41937C 11953 7T 14324 7T

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

2015 Option (Contd)

The estimate fair value of the option granted on 26 March 2015 is approximately
RMB21,880,000. The fair value was calculated using the binomial model. The inputs

into the model were as follows:

Closing price at the granted date
Rt BB
Exercise price

1TfEfE

Expected volatility
EHR bR

Expected life
TREE

Risk - free rate

= [ o )
Expected divided vield
RHR S =

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the historical volatility of the
Company's share price. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on the management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,

exercised restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB2,649,000 (2016: RMB7,101,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 in relation to share options granted by the

Company.

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}

25.

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

UBRBZNNRS (&)

2015 FEREREE)

201593 A 26 B H 00 B8 BRI # f 51
NEEHABARE 21,880,000 © AF
BERAZEAREFE - ZEENE
ABURIAT -

2015 Option
2015 FRERE

HKD1.82
.82 87T
HKD1.86
.86 /87T
46.19%
46.19%
[-3 years
| 2345
1.39%
1.39%
2.20%
2.20%

RHK IR 2 Z AR A R(E M E LK
lREE - RAMANEHFHCRE
EHEEBNREMGFUITER 1768
R RITREEBRAENZE(ELHE -

AEEERARRRENBRERR
HZ017F A3 BLEEENRAY
fEE A\ R ¥2,649,00070(2016%F ¢ A
¥ 7,101,0007T) °
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

26. OPERATING LEASE 26.

The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the
following future minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises under non-

cancellable operating leases with outsiders and a related party, which fall due:

ReEHEE

AEEEREEA

REFHKR  FAEESREEIINFA
TR—BEEALIT LA HEEL
ERNAFERAEADENR T
BRI R RRERS

2017 2016

20175 20165

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTTT

Within one year —FR 5,425 2,643
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFENF(EEMEREEN) 2,214 2615
7,639 57258

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of one to five year.

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease payments:

HEDHEME  —2hFEHAN
HEREE

AEBERKEA
REREFK  AEEDRASTON
ARBIERERN KD -

2017 2016

20175 20165

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

Within one year —FR 11,208 9,365
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZFNF(EREMEREEAN) 12,099 32,833
After five years hF# = 31,022
23,307 73220

The Group entered into an arrangement with a third party in the PRC to lease

rented premises are negotiated for terms from one to five years.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. BARAE
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided B R ED % « BB MR ED
in the consolidated financial statements in respect BRINERBEERS
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment  BIF5 R R BEMNE AR 31,743 22,127
Capital contribution to associate mEEE AR E — 1,000
Total A&t 31,743 23,127
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXRERERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued share capital, share premium and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendation of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,

new share issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new bank loans.

ELERERLA
2017 £ 3

AEEEREERNABRASEET
BRAANAFELE  THSERE
BEMRETE  AERREREAL
W EFE ARENEBRBRE

ASENEXREBBRBITER R
e RATFEMFERANDAEAA
AR (BREHEITRA - BOEE
REMERE) o

ARRESTBYFRIBENERE -
REEN—BD  EFEEELRKK
HEBRENEANER - REEFN
EZ ARERERIKRE - %17
FA -~ B BB BT & SR 1T E AR
BARENERBEANLRE
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For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Categories of financial instruments

29. BHEBEERRRRBE

SRIENES
2017 2016
2017 & 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Financial assets %ET\EE
Loans and receivables (including ERRERESR(RE

bank balances and cash) RITEBEIRE) 1,257,777 1,324,249
Financial liabilities tRAE
Amortised cost BER AR 1,122,287 882,554
Financial risk management objectives and polices BERABREERERBER

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, dividend
payable and bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include credit
risk, market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets at the
end of the reporting period. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and notes and bills receivable. The credit risk on trade receivables
and notes and bills receivable are concentrated on top five customers of the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable and notes and bills receivable at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited because the majority of the

counterparties are international banks and state-owned banks with good reputation.

The Group sells most of the products to a limited number of customers in the
PRC. If the Group is unable to broaden the customer base and expand relationships
with major wireless network solution providers and major network operators, the
business may continue to be impacted by unanticipated demand fluctuations which
can have a negative impact on the revenues and business, and an adverse effect on

the results of operations and financial condition.
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For year ended 31 December 2017
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For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Contd)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in
Mainland China, which accounted for 72.5% (2016: 87.9%) of the total trade

receivables as at 31 December 2017.

As for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 22.4% (2016: 28.3%) and 78.4% (2016: 72.4%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively. These major customers are network operators and domestic and
overseas wireless network solution providers with good reputation and repayment

records.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases and certain trade
receivables, bank balances, trade payables and bank borrowings of the Group
are denominated in HKD, USD, Euro (“EUR"), and Swiss franc ("CHF"),
currencies other than the functional currency of the Company's principal
subsidiaries, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

29. BHEBEERRRRBE

(Contd) (&)
Market risk (Contd) miEmE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Contd) () EEEE (&)
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary RERARAEBAINERTERD
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as EEENEEEENEREN
follows: T
2017 2016
20175 20164
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
8E =i BE =N
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR¥TR ARBTRT ARETT
HKD BT 12,027 53,081 1,530 46|
usD e 165,723 1,037 31210 60,825
EUR BT 1,409 = 411 —
CHF Y A BB — 6 —

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2016: 5%) change
in RMB against HKD, USD, EUR and CHF. The 5% (2016: 5%) represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign
exchange rates. No sensitivity analysis is presented for CHF against RMB
as the effect is insignificant. The sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period have been
determined based on the adjustment of translation of the monetary assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting period for 5% (2016: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates an increase in
post-tax loss (2016: a decrease in post-tax profit) where RMB strengthens
against HKD, USD and EUR. For the year ended 31 December 2017, a
positive number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss. For 5% (2016:
5%) weakening of RMB against HKD, USD and EUR, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on post-tax loss (2016: post-tax profit).

EhkERERLXT
2017 % 3R

TREBEAEBARBLET -
ET - BT RIREERD5%(2016
F 1 5%) BB BRE S © 5%
(20164F : 5%) h B 12 [E ¥ 5N
ERGEMAEEBNTME - A
FEVIHEAR RALEZFIHLT
EBHARBHRESN - K&
B 2 ME R BAER INEE R
RRNSRESM DIREEEE
REBERZ2RBARER %2016
6 1 5%) SN IE R By H MO [E
RARETE -  AEERTARKER
AT ETRBTAEEBER TR
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For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

29. BHEBEERRRRBE

(Cont'd) (#&)
Market risk (Contd) miEmE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Contd) () E¥EE (&)
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTFT
If RMB strengthens against HKD WARE S BTIAE 2,057 (53)
If RMB strengthens against USD MAREEETHE (6,959) (2,840)
If RMB strengthens against EUR WARELBITHE (60) (17
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the ERERA  BRFEMRERIL
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the PRIRERRER - B SRE
exposure during the year. DT R IRBE B B INE LB
(i) Interest rate risk ()  FIEmEE

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk which arises from
pledged bank balances (note 20) and fixed rate bank borrowings (note 22).
Pledged bank balances and fixed rate bank borrowings are mainly short-term
nature. Therefore, any variation in interest rate will not have a significant

impact on the results of the Group.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk which arises from bank
balances (note 20) and floating rate bank borrowings (note 22). The Group
keeps its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair

value interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont d)
(i) Interest rate risk (Contd)
The positive number below indicates the decrease in post-tax loss or

increase in post-tax profit, and vice versa.

29.

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

BEEREEREREE

(&)

misER(E)

(i)  FEmEE (&)
U EBRRHERE R R
EMEEI - RZTA »

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTTT
(Note a) (Note a)
(Mata) (P5Ea)
If the interest rate goes up fisi | = £ Ft
Decrease in post-tax loss or increase WEEBRRD K
in post-tax profits Tt 18 4 MI1E hn 751 927
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
(Note b) (Note b)
(Bt=EDb) (P%EDb)
If the interest rate goes down fisi FIl 2= T &
Increase in post-tax loss or decrease Tt {2 B B8 fnsk
in post-tax profit 75t 18 4 MRl (724) (922)
Notes: BisE
(a)  Ifinterest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points higher and interest rate @  BRERITHERONEEIN0EE

on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher and

all other variables were held constant.

(b) If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign currencies
had been 0.1 basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, and interest rate
on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all

other variables were held constant.
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance

with loan covenants.

Banking facilities available to the Group are approximately RMB953,906,000 (2016:
RMBI,018,740,000).

The Group relies on bank balances and cash, and bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has available unutilised banking
facilities of approximately RMB601,953,000 (2016: RMB431,496,000).

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 29. BKERKBEEEERBXR
(Cont'd) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Contd) REELRER(Z)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest ZREVFNERTERESRE - WA
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve BIRZEHHNEAE - AIRITHE S EIR
at the end of the reporting period. SWRARHFEGE o
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2017
interest rate Payable 0t030 311060 611090 91 10 180 Over 180 ashflows  R20I7E

METH on demand days days days days days BRFR 12A31R

EBAE EXBEE 02308 3IZ0R  6I1Z%A 9ZI180R HBI80A BER BHE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETR  ARMIL  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTIL  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR

017 WITE
Trade and other payebles B 7 REMEREZ NATER 177,664 267,159 147,785 158743 75,105 Tl 834097 834097
Dividend payable ERRE NATER 6 - - - - - 76 76
Bank borrowings L
~ Fixed interest rate -EENE 584 - - 10,068 61,08 115897 5,084 239,092 235,000
~Foating interestrate~ —ZEIFIE K] - - - - 52978 - 52978 52464
178390 267,159 157853 219,786 243,980 59725 1,126,893 1,122,287
2016 W6E
Trade and other payebles B 7 REMEREZ NATER 194309 1258 9466) 128443 78141 4680 625517 65517
Dividend payable EFRE NATER 70 — - - - - 770 70
Bank borrowings L
~Fixed interest rate -EEHE 613 — - - - 87525 107892 195417 185480
~Floatinginterest st — /¥R 192 - — - - 54500 17035 715% 70767
195079 125.28) 9466 126443 0016 129,407 893239 882,554
The amount included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative ik

FTEERMBETEIAZEHHN
financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to REHHEISFPRET 2FETE -
F

those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period. BIaZET R AV HES ST o
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

29.

30.

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 29. PREAREEAERBE
(Cont'd) (#&)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERIENAFEFE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial RABEERAE  HEHENAT AL
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial AHBERENSREELSHEBER
statements approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting period. The fair FHERERERBARORAFEMR
value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with B ooRMEENEREENATLER
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. RRAEBERX  BENARERES
IMERE o
PLEDGE OF ASSTES 30. EEER
Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged to secure bank UTHRAEMNEED TER  IKHE
borrowings and bills payable granted to the Group. REEERRRITEIRENRE -
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Pledged bank deposits ERRITER 166,658 124,612
Notes receivable EREE 70,657 225852
237,315 350,464
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 3. BRAKERGE

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the local govemment. MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian are required to contribute 4%, 20% and 20%, respectively, of the payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of these entities with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the

specified contributions.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted to
RMB30,034,000 (2016: RMB24,251,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEALRS
(@)  During the year, the Group has the following significant transactions with (@) RER NEFRFIELRE
SZWS, TATERRS °
The significant transaction between the Group and SZWS are as follows: AEEERY G BETHEXR
RHWT
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
Nature of transaction REHME ARETR ARBTFIT
Rental expenses Hex it 956 1,331
2017 2016
2017 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
Related party balances BMEALER ARBTR ARETT
Other receivables HoAth & U BR 3K 72 7
Other payables Hofth FE 1 BR 3K 106 —
Note: The balances are unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand. izt - A REER  2ERREXK
R ER o
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) REBERE

As disclosed in note 26, at the end of the reporting period, the Group was
committed to make the following future minimum lease payment in respect
of a rented premise under non-cancellable operating lease with SZWS,

which fall due:

MM 26T IREE - N2 W
K AREEREERYIETB
IR AR EHAOARR
FAT AR PR WD 38 S I T A ey P 21 A
HARHEEE

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'’ 000

ARBTR ARBETT

Within one year —FR 1,331 1,331
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFENF(EEMEREEN) 222 1,553
1,553 2,884

The lease is negotiated and rental is fixed for lease term of five years.
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 32.

(c)  Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

were as follows:

BEALTRS(#)
() FEEBEASHEM
EERTEEREHEMK BN

BT -
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’ 000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Short-term benefits ySEEGEER 8,551 8,789
Equity-settled share base payment IR EE AR D BERR 557 1,453
Post-employment benefits BER R A 142 126

9,250 10,368

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions of one director were paid by
SZWS for the year ended 3| December 2017 and 2016.

33 RECONCILIATION OF LIABLITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 33.

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

EERTIRITRAENFHMIR
BEAXREETZEEMET -

HE2017FER2016F 128318
HFE  —RFEMRKENE
A BRI RBIA -

BMETHREHR

TERFIFGERETDHAELZE
BRASIIFHEEY  BERPE
EMBENEARERERRARS
MENAEBRERERTOIERE
BEBpREeRENERE -

Financing  Distribution to

01/01/2017 cash flows

shareholders Interest 3171212017

20175 MERE BRRIIK expenses 2017 5

IAIAE RE
RMB RMB

AR¥R AR®RT

NeHE MERFX 12A31H
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET AR%ET

Bank Borrowings RITIER 256,267 31,197 — — 287,464
Dividend payable RIS 770 (28,486) 28,442 — 726
Interest payable R 2, = (14,568) = 14,568 —

257,037 (11,857) 28,442 14,568 288,190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
As at the end of both reporting periods, the particulars of the Company’s

subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date Issued and fully

of establishment/ paid registered

Fe)

MWz

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

34, KRB EEFATHE

HEWEZ
BT -

Equity interest

attributable

WYR - ARAFRAF

Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/share capital to the Group  Principal activities
B/ s ERITRAR
TRARER Rt E K B dAMER/RE  AREEGRE FEXHB
2017 & 2016 2017 & 2016
2017FR2016F 2017FK2016F
MORBI fian The PRC RMB267,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
23 May 2006 antennas and
radio frequency subsystems
BHERO hE AR® 100% £ RIHE RIRA
200655 A 23R 267,000,000 7T BRENATRSR
MOBI Shenzhen @ The PRC RMB220,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
12 August 1999 antennas and
radio frequency subsystems
BRI P E ARH 100% A& RHEXRZM
19998 A 128 220,000,000 7T BRESATRER
MORBI Xian © The PRC RMB120,000,000 100%  Production and sale of
29 April 2008 antennas and
radio frequency subsystems
BL A% e FE ARM 100% A& RHERZM
20084 A29R 120,000,000 7T BIRBHIET R4
MOBI HK © Hong Kong HKD10,000,000 100%  Trading of antennas and radio
|5 December 2010 frequency subsystems
BHERO BA 10,000,000 7 7T 100% REMEBLRESIET
20105128 15H P

EhkERERLXT
2017 % 3R
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

34.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont'd)

Notes:

)

MORBI Jian is directly held by the Company and wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the
PRC.

MOBI Shenzhen is directly held by MOBI Jian and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the
PRC.

MOBI Xian is directly held by MOBI Shenzhen and a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in
the PRC.

MOBI HK is directly held by the Company.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries that are not

material to the Group. A majority of these subsidiaries are engaged in production and sale

of antennas and radio frequency subsystems, which operate in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

mEMBHRRME

For year ended 31 December 2017
HEWTFEN2ANBLERE

35. AQTBBEAMREER

2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFIT
Non-current Assets FREEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries Jinma/NGIL:OE A TN 375,334 372,685
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMF R BIFIE 133,124 192,995
508,458 565,680
Current Assets TEVEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEW T A RIFRIA 81,707 40,060
Bank balances and cash BIER MR 11,546 4989
93,253 45,049
Current liabilities mBaE
Short-term bank loan RHIRITER 52,464 53930
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENERR 107 260
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEF R B8 33,834 14,194
Dividend payable FE AR 2. 726 770
87,451 69,154
Net Current Assets (Liabilities) mBEE(RER)FHE 5,802 (24,105)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERLBAE 514,260 541,575
Capital and Reserves R K
Share capital (note 24) BRA (PR E 24) 6 6
Reserves G 514,254 541,569
Total Equity s 514,260 541,575

BEtkB#RAERAL2A
2017 & %}
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REMBHRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12 A3 BILER

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Contd) 35. ﬂxﬁﬂﬂtﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁ%(@
Movement in reserves HEEH

Share option

reserve
(note 25)
Share B Retained
premium wE earnings Total
R4 EE (Ff&E25) REBA st
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR AR®TR ARWTRT ARET=

At | January 2016 R2016F 1 A1 H 516232 18,660 8595 543487
Recognition of equity-settled share BRI A E ARG

base payment RERORH — 7,101 — 7,101
Profit and the total comprehensive FEMER

income for the year e ONE — — 19,053 19,053
Dividend paid ERRE (28072) — — (28072)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12431 H 488,160 25,761 27,648 541,569
Exercise of share option TR R 3,266 (808) — 2458
Recognition of equity-settled BRI A E AR

share base payment REWNMR — 2,649 — 2,649
Loss and the total comprehensive FEBER

expense for the year 2ERAXEE — — (3692) (3692)
Dividend paid ERERE (28442) — — (28442)
Shares repurchased BERMD (288) — — (288)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128318 462,696 27,602 23956 514,254

2 1 2 MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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